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“Performance. Commitment. Quahty.
In a word, Wates. The Wates Group

1S driven by a commitment to its
customers, partners, shareholders,
employees, communities and the
environment. As a family-owned
business with 116 years’ experience,
we share a deeply held sense of
responsibility to provide outstanding
projects for our customers and to
make alasting difference to the
communities in which we work.”

PAUL DRECHSLER
Charman and Chief Executive
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[ Business and Financial Overvrew_J

WHAT WE DO

Wates Group s o fomily-owned construction senvices and
devetopment company that s fully committed to delivering the
hughest quality projects to our customers while making a difference
to the lives of people in the communities in which we work

Keeping people safe from harm remains a top prionty and we
continue to engage with site operatives and our supply chain to
ensure we are constantly striving to improve

Our business includes Developments with expertise 1n land,
planning and joint venture developments, Needspace? which
provides fiexible workspace for entrepreneural businesses

and our general Construction business which includes Living Space
and Construction, delwermng for ¢ore markets such as education,
new build affordable housing, local authortties, heritage,
commercial and mixed-use developments, plonned and responsive
maintenance as well as Intenors and Retard which provides high
quahty fit-out, structural re-engineerng and nohionat roll-out of
high volume projects It 1s this diversity across market sectors that
underlnes the strength and stability of the Group

In 2012, Wates perfarmed strongly in challenging market
conditons for the construction industry gs a whole Qur experience
w delivering cutstanding projects means that we continue to build
long term relationships with our customers and enjoy high levels of
repeat business

This gnnual report sets out the achievements of the Group and all
our people and outlines the opportunities for the year ghead

£1.2bn™

GROUP TURNOVER 2012

GROUP PERFORMANCE

CONSTRUCTION TURNQVER

£547Tm’

WHith many yeors expenence, \Wotes
Construction specialises in maxmising

value for our customers and delivering
outstanding buildings otross the UK

We have a strong trock record in all our core
markets educaton pnsans local cuthorries,
hentoge commeraal and mixed-use
developments and a real understandmg

of our customers’ needs

LIVING SPACE TURNOVER

£455m”

Wates Living Space 15 one of the UK s leading
affarduble hausing consirichon servires
providers We work with local authonties
and socal landlords to prowde the best
all-in-one service for our clients across

the UK \n 2012 we built or refuibished over
22 000 properties and our successiul
tntegration of Linbrook Servces enables us
{0 provide o full responsive maimtenance
offering However we do more than prowide
good quabkty homes, we make a real
difference 1o reswdants ives by contnbuing
to the wider regeneratton of communities

Above all, it's about peopie




£29.3m’

UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2012
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DIVERSE CUSTOMER BASE

INTERIORS AND RETAIL TURNGVER

£117m

Bunng 2012 we restructured our Inteniors
and Retait businesses, combining them

under oneleadership to provide a nationol
infrastructure and greater flexibility for our
customers Intenars and Retad is now focused
on delivenng high quality it-out structurol
re-engineenng ond national rolt-out of

tugh volume projects Servicing a numbier

of sectors including hugh street brands
supermarkets retad and office lgndlords and
bonks Qur track record in delivering on time
on budget. inlive environments with mimmum
disruption, ensures long term repeat business
relotonships with our customers

DEVELOPMENTS TURNOVER

£73m’

Wates Developments combines expertise
jnlond acquisition plannmng consent tor
brown and greenheld sites snd jomnt venture
residennol deveiopments Qur hnonciol
strength and commercial acumen makes
us an atrrgctive partner for both land
owners and developers across Southern
England ond we plon to continue to grow
our portfolio of land inveéstments

NEEDSPACE? TURNDVER

m

Needspace? provides ofiordable

and flexrhie managed ofhice workshop
and studio units lor small businesses
iniondon ond the South Eost

At each of our lugh quality business
centres we aim to cregte o community
of entreprenewrs developing thew
businesses alongside others Ina
supportive environment

* mdudes shere of jonl ventures iangver

*nowdes shore of jount veniures” ond assoante’s kumgver

t _nderhyng sroht befora tek sty ed bedore <Structorng
~asond prath or wre otewe siieus
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I Chairman and Chief Executive s Review ]

CONTINUING

TO DELIVER

A STRONG
PERFORMANCE IN
A CHALLENGING
MARKET

i am pleased to report that the
Wates Group dehvered solid
results in 2012, in challenging
market conditions

The UK and European economies
continued to exhibit low growth
and public sectar investment

in UK construction projects
declined significantly

The Grougp's diverse portfolio
and excellent performance in
some businesses drove turnover
up by 7% to £1 2bn’ This same
diversity insulated the Group
from fghtening margins in
Construction with underiying
pre-tax profit” of £29 3m

Above all it's about people




Reduced demand for construction, some
unsustainable pricing by competitors and
anncreasing number of supply cham faillures
coimbined to create the most demanding
trading conditions Thrs together with some
operatioral challenges placed pressure

an margins in our construction business
Excellent performonce i residentiol
development, however, enabled us to
deuver pre-tax profit of £29 3m* at g net
margn of 27%

The Wates Group is a wholly family

owned business, founded on principles of
suStanability: using pasitive busmess growth
to helpimprove the environment and advance
the well-being of local communities today and
for future generations

Qur Group s purpose 1$ to deiiver business with
ncreased valve, potential and reputation from
one generation to the next

The key to thisis o strong resihent balance
sheet built over the years by strategic long
termnvestment and o yeor on year focus on
sustainable proht delivery

Further investment during the year
ingreased capital employed n residential

and commercial property to £77m

This Investment and Wates prudent opproach
has resulted in a strong balance sheet

Shareholder funds grew dunng 2012 by 9%

to Just aver £70m with both the fong term
future und hnonol stobility ot the core of our
business decision making The result)s that we
are a strong rehiable and stable business which
benehts our portners und customers aike

The Wates construction business includes
Construction with a turngver of £547m**

with core markets including education both

in the UK and the Middle Eost local authonty
frameworks, hernitage projects and carmmmercial
and mixed-use developments

Living Space with o turnover of £455mm’,
providing new-build affordable housing ond
refurtishment together with planned and
responsive mointenonce enhanced by the
successful integration of Linbrook Services

Business and Financiol Qveniaw

{ D] thowmon and Chiet Executive s Review

Casa studies

Business and Finenciol Review
Governance

Accounts

Qther nformotion

“OUR FINANCIAL STABILITY, THE DIVERSITY OF OUR PORTFOLIO

AND THE VALUES OF A FAMILY RUN BUSINESS THAT HAS

BEEN COMMITTED TO THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY FOR

GENERATIONS, ENSURE THAT WE Wil.L CONTINUE TO BUILD
LONG TERM RELATIONSHIPS WITH OUR CUSTOMERS

Intenors and Retad with a turnover of £177m
providing intenors and Tit-out reloted services
to some of the UK s biggest retarlers and
commergal customers ncluding Marks and
Spencer John Lews and Lloyds Banking Group

Alongside our ingnciol stobility and reshenc e
15 the diversity of our portfalic Fxtending

the Wates business across several market
Sectors with strong differentiation and diverse
custumer prufiles reduces risk and tbulds in
furthor resilience Lo the financiot performance
thot underlines the strength and stability of
the Group

This prudent approach to growth has
proven successful,

RESILIENCE AND ADAPTABILITY
TOACHIEVE RESULTS

In addition t¢ demonstrating resitience

the Group has adapted to tougher market
conditions We restructured our Interiors
and Retaill businesses and rearganised our
Construction business to help us respond
more efficiently to aur customers’ changing
needs and to make better use of our talent
and resources

To ensure we remain campetitive, we have
nght-sized the business where necessary
With an overall headcount reduction in 2012
of 283 we hove made annualised savings of
over £18 5mand the business will continue to
target further iImprovements to deliver better
value cnd improve eficiency

* Befora testructonng costsand proft on soe of mestments  ** Including share of jont ventures ¥ Includmg shaze of Nt ventues ond associcte

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chowman and Chief Executive

Despite the economic ¢imate, we continued
to Invest n our people ther trainmg

and development, with 17,335 training
requirements delivered across the Group since
2010 an average of $,778 per annum and 3
training needs per person per annum Over
the past 3 years, 11 tramees have progressed
through our training programmes with great
ambition ond potentigt for the future

Gur balance sheet and cash positicn reman
strong and aur ngorous inoncial management
together with strong commitrent from

the Wates family, gives us a real basis for
competitive advantage and means that we
are in astrang position o keep developing the
businass for the future

Safety ts a core value | am plegsed with

lhe progress we mode n 2012 A significant
improvement i our safety performance
resulted n a 53% reduction i reportable
accdents ond o 48% improvement In our
nearmiss reperting The inthatives we put in
place, Plon Right Start Right and Look and
Feel gssessments, which focus on the active
management of sites, have had a positive
impact on our safety record and ) am confident
that we will continue toimprove n 2013

On behalf of the Wates Group Board | would
Iike 1o thonk the managernent feams who
have steered a clear course through most
dithcult times | would also ke to thank all our
employecs for thew continued dedication
oand commitment — it 15 ther efforts thot
have enabled us to continue to prosper in

a challenging environment and have given
us 50 many reasons to be proud of Wates
throughout 2012

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Chairman and Chief Executive s Review

“THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY
DECLINED A FURTHER 10%

N 2012 (A REDUCTION OF
CIRCA 309% SINCE THE START OF
THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN)
WE WILL CONTINUE TG REMIND
GOVERNMENT THAT PUBLIC
INVESTMENT IN CONSTRUCTION
IS THE MOST BENEFICIAL

USE OF STIMULATIVE PUBLIC
EXPENDITURE IN BOTH THE
SHORT AND LONG TERM EVERY
E1INVESTED IN CONSTRUCTION
GENERATES £2 84N TOTAL
ECONDMIC ACTIVITY"

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chairman and Chief Executive

£1.6bn

FORWARD ORDER BOOK

£3.1bn

PIPELINE OF BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

OUR COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Qur customers have had to contend with
exceptionally challenging trading conditions
ond their focus continues to be on value for
money and certainty Understanding and
respondmg to their needs and deliverng
excellent projects sofely, on tme ond on
budget are at the heart of our business goals
In 2012 we delvered some outstanding
projects across the UK from the headquarters
for Amenican Express in Brighton to maovative
work for the Metropohtan Police and new
aifordable housing as part of the Kirklees
Excellent Homes far Life PFl We have
continued to grow our market position in
educction social housing banking and
responsive mainienance

To ansure that we provide real value to

our customers we have made greater use

of colluborative tools such os Buldng
Information Modeling (BIM} This brings
together all the nfermation about a building s
design and constructton and enables us 1o
develop more eficent cost-effective and
sustanable soluticns for our customers

We are already using BIM on o number of
projects and recogrise ils fony 1orm benenls
for customers and far the Wates Group

We hove alse ntroduced o new commercial
and procurement sfructure which integrates
actwvities across our businesses and enables
us to offer greater efficiencies 1o our
customers Centrol professional procurement
also means thot we have been able to
strengtnen our relationshups with our
strateqic supply chain partners

To help us monage our relctionships with
our customers we have mode good use of
owrnew CRM system It is nowwdely used
ocross the business and 15 witcl in supporting
customer refabonships morketing ond
business plerming. We have also invested

a great deal of time and energy 1n building
stronger relationships with existing customers.
Our best source of future qualty business i1s
todoys customers and we are very plecsed
with the level of repeat business.

OUR PRIORITIES FOR 2013

In addition to safety, our focus n 20135 to
continue to strengthen our balance sheet and
we wil look toleverage our finoncial position
through further careful investment and

business growth Winning the nght projects
atthe nght price terms and conditions willbe
key in 2013 as competition intensihies

We are focusing on smarter bidding for
projects so that the opporturities for margin
enhancement and the avoidance of nsk are
manoged hetter nght from the start. We are
commtted to deliverng bigh quclity projects
on ume on budget for all our customers with
a clear focus on professional project delivery
which wll underpin our inonciol perfarmenca

In the year ahead we will continue to focus

on what we do best, delvenng outstanding
projects for our customers providing support
for the communities in which we work and
developing the skills of our employees

NEW OPPORTUNITIES

While the economic outlook remaims uncertain
there are stll many new opporturibies ovarlable
to our businesses We have beenworking

with the energy suppiier npower as paort of

the Government's Communty Energy Soving
Programme (CESP) This requires energy
suppliers to delver energy-saving medasures
such as bulding insuiation to domestic
CONsLUMers I speciic low-income areas of

the UK Leving Space has already goined a
sigmftcunt share of the murket From 2013
energy supphers will suppart the nsulaton of
nomes and reduce the costs of heating to an
allordable lovel under g now scheme — the
Energy Company s Obligation (ECO) We are
supporting soctollanglords inimproving the
energy eficiency of ther homes by gaining
access to the funds availoble under these
energy supphers’ programmes

The UK faces a significant housing shortoge
and glong with our industry peers, we will
contnue 1@ make the cuse to the government
that there 1s a need for new housing and that
capetgl expenditure 1s the most effective way (o
stimulate the economy In the meaniime we are
exploring innovative ways in which we con form
jont ventures to fund new housing

Our expertise n the educotion sector also
offers new opportunities and we are pramoting
our Adapt School Solutrons programme

which enables local authorities to convert
exsting cormmercial buiddings nto pnmary and
secondary schools or to create new buildings
efficently and cost effecuvely

Ahgve all, it's about people




£295m

WORKWON IN 2013 TO DATE

The integration of Linbrook also enabyes

us to grow our presence in the responsive
maintenance sector We have already signed
a new framework with Town and Country
Housing Asseciation in Tunbndge Wells and
we are looking to continue to grow this area of
our business natonglly

WATES PEOPLE

As lmeet Wates people on site and at our
offices ther enthusiasm commitment ond
professionalism never fads to nspire me
Our people are what make Wotes the
company it s 1am very proud ot the
achievements of afl aur employees in

what as been a tough yaar but | would

like to mentionn porocular, James Wotes
who was aworded a CBE for s services

to constructlon and the chantable sector
and Huw Davies who was appointed s the
HRH The Pnrnce of Wales Ambaossador for
the South Eost region of Business in the
Community in addition, | would like to thank
the Wates tearn that scaled Kdimanaro and
raised aver £60,000 for our chanity partner
Barnardos and everyone that took part in
our annual Wates Community Day donating
8,700 hours to over 90 different projects

SUPPORTING COMMUNITIES

We recognise that business s a powerful
force for goodn soctety A commitment to
supporting the communities in which we work
15 embedded in everything we do and is shared
by everyone at Wates We have continued

to support locol communities across the

UK creating local employment and tranmng
opportunities raising the aspirations and skifs
of young people end providing ways n which
our people can give socmething back. We
supported 2 400 students through Business
Class eventsn the 2011/2012 academic year
and more than 616 adults have taken part i
our Bulding Futures programme to date

We were pleased to be able to colloborate
with other compantes i the construction
Industry in the Prnce s Trust Get mto
Censtruction Programme which offers work
experience 1o young people oged 18-25
Together we helped 700 young people
through this programme in 2012

COMPANY LEADERSHIP

1would like to thank the Wates farnily ond
members of the Group Board for their
gudance and support over the lgst yeor

The Wates formiy has worked for 4 generotions
to ensure that the business delivers the highest
guahty work for our customers and olso

gves something back to the communities we
serve Wates combines the stability longevity
and volues of a fomily-run business with the
dynomism ond inpovative thinking thot wil ke
the business forward for future generotions

There have been a number of changes to the
Wates Group Board dunng 2012

| would hke 10 express our thorks and
appreciation to Nick MocAndrew for his
commutted and most valuable cantribution to
the Wates Group Board over the past Syears
and for bis diligent leadership of the Audit
Committee for much of that tume Nick retred
at the AGM in 2012 We alsa announced that
Fritz Termofsky would retire at the forthcomung
AGMand | take this opportunity to thank hum
far his support and contibution over the past
6 vears and for s thoughtful leadership of the
Remuneration Committee

Wewere very pleased to welcome Dowvid
Barclay to the Board in October 2012 and
welcomed Oeena Mattar in Februcry 2013

I thank Jan Burnett Managing Director of
Wates Living Space unul December 2017 for
his contnbution to Wates over 18 years and we
were pleased to welcome Andy Hobart as his
successorinlanuary 2013

Rod Stewart left the Groupin Octaber toreturn
0 managng anntemgtionol vl engineenng
cansultancy As the Group Praduction Director
for the past 2 years Rod provided leadership
and arganisational structure to our operations
and support functions He i succeeded by
John Howell who will build on the pragress
made to further marove project delivery ond
technical leadership

Business ond Financiot Ovennew

m Chairman and Chlef Executive’s Review
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Busiress and Finonciol Review
Governance
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Other informaotion

OUTLOOK

We do not expect recovery in the UK
construction market unyt ot least 2014
Company reputation can make all the
dilférence (o winning new busmness and
retaining exsting customers Wates brand
values commitment to safety corporate
responsitthity and abiity to deliver high-
quality prajects all stand us in good stead
We have areputation for creating innovative
salutons, for example in our work with the
Metropolitan Police and our Adapt School
Solutions programme We also have o
reputation for reliabilty ond stability in on
increasingly uncertain market

We are proud to be a 4th generoton family-
owned bustness with 116 years of experience
behind us and we are here for the long term for
our customers, communities and employees
We are finoncially strong today and we are
commited to remaining so in the future

Cur aim 5 to continue to enhonce Wates
position g5 one of the UK’ leading companies
in the buiit environment and our expenence
professional pecple and sirong relauonships
with customers and our supply chcn will help
us to achreve that geal

%u-( 'J'EA‘%M[«(‘

PAUL DRECHSLER
Chairman and Chief Executive

Waotes Anrual Report and Accounts 2012
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In a word, Wates
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Inspire: Luton
Sports Village

To inspire people of all ages and abilities to
take up sport and to drarmatically improve
leisure facilitres in the town, Luton Borough
Council commssioned \Wates to create a
£26m world-class, 50m swimming pool
dving centre and sports hall

In addition to the 8 fane pool that 1s capable
of holding nationagl swimming competitions
with space for 424 spectators we built a

20 metre 4 lgne community pool (with
moveable lloar), g dry diving facility with
floor mounted trampolines and haresses
to ollow divers to practice in safety 0100
station gym exercise studros group cycling
reom and café [t was a challenging project
50 we took on lessons legrned best practice

and peer revtew We had to deal with tight
dimensional tolerances particularly with
the 10 metre precast diving board in order
to meet the exacting standards set out for
campetition swimimeng pools We also had
to deal with an archaeological dig ond very
severe weather canditions duning the early
stages of the project

The centre now called inspire, was officiglly
opened In October and, true to its name, 1s
mspining locals to get itter and healthier

The outstanding factlities have also ottracted

the ottention of Olympic bronze medallist
Tom Duley, who has Thmed Splash, a TV
celebrity diving competition, in the pool

Bugmess and Financiol Overview

Chairman and Chief Executive s Review

| D] case studies

Business and Financial Review

Governonce

Accounts

Dther mformation

“This centre
wilthelp to
regenerate

the town and
move Luton
into o different
leaguein terms
of leisure

and sporting
facihties.”

Lord McKenzie
of Luton

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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“I am proud to have been a part
of providing o university faciity
that is undoubtedly among the
best in the UK. The university
has mvested in the Alan Gilbert
Learming Commons Building to
create o multitude of innovative.
technology-nich facifities that
create an ultra-modem, high
quality and sttmuloting space
dedicated to the students where
they are free to relax and learn.
To see their delight and
enthusiasm tn using the bulding
15 truly rewarding.”

Shone Benson, Project Manager

Busmess and FAnancigl Overview

Chosman and Chief Executive’s Review
[D] case swudies

Business and Financicl Review

Governance

Accounts

Qther nformetion

The Alan Gilbert Learning Commons,
University of Manchester

The University of Manchester 15 the largest
university In the UK with afmost 40 000
students and an extensive campus It wanted
to create a focal point at the heart of the
University where students could get together
and learn etther on an individual basis or
collaboratively i groups 1tis based on the
‘Learrning Commons concept developed in
the US and Austraha

The result s the Alan Gihert Learming
Commaons, a £12m state of the art,
sustoinable fociity Lnat offers o stimulating
secure environment for studying, 24 hours
aday The project focused on energy
conservation and sustainability meosures
In the building, design and construction
processes to create a world-class facidity

The wark included the re-cladding and
complete fit-out of on existing 1960s
concrete tower block which was onginally
14 storeys and has now been reduced to
4 sioreys and the construction of o

new extension

Reusing the existing concrete building frome
and foundations resulted in reduced project
tme lower costs and carbon footprint and
{ess waste The bulding achweved a BREEAM
Excellent rating with a score of 72 49 and will
generate 10% of the energy needed on site
The building 1s heated by a steam main on the
university compus and aiso inciudes

a passive ventilotion system and solar
heating supplements

Wates Annuci Report and Accounts 2012
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OPPORTUNITIES

SUPPORT

In a word, Wates
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BU|Id|ng Futures — Many communities across the UK lack regl

employment opportunities Since 2005

we have been running a pioneenng return to
GUteWOVS work / training programme colled Bulding

Futures which helps people gain the skills ana
tO OIthm training they need to make the move in{o

empleyment or further education

]

“I'm learning

o much on

site and really
looking forward
to becoming o
fully qualitied
plumber. The
teom ) work with
are greet and |
oppreciote them
showng me the
ropes.”

Chns Yurwond,
Apprentice Plumber

In Oldham, where Wates Living Space 1$

working on the £71m Gateways to Oldham PFI
we have warked with qur supply chain

and the local Council’s Employability Team

to prowde traning in constiwchon skills

and career guidance workshops in 2012,

we provided 2 824 weeks of paid

employment and a further 95 Into training

[
|
‘ employment helped 227 local residents into

Joonne Jamieson, Regiona! Managing
Director for Wates Living Space says

We have always miended ow work on
Gateways to Odham to be used as a catalyst
for boosting opporturities for local people
The candidctes have shown recl promise
and our programme of traiming and practical
work expenence has gwven them a chance to
develop their obvious talent”

Wates Annudl Report and Accounts 2012




MODERN
PROFESSIONAL
CREATIVE

In a word, Wates

Above gl! it's about peopte



John Laing

Wotes has a long standing refationshup
with infrastructure specialists, John Laing
so when it hod 10 move from its head office
— which was being demolished as part of
aregeneration programme in Victoro,
London — it osked us to work on the £1 6m
Intenor fit-out of its new flagship bullding

One Kingsway 1s @ prime centrat London
mxed-use new builld development behind

an onginal listed fagade lohn Laing has taken
the 1st and 2nd ffoors of the bullding and
needed o modern, professiond and flexible
space to represent its business We provided
a quchty ht-out injust 13 weeks

Busmess ond Finantia) Overview

Chorman and Chiet Executive s Review

m Case studies

Business and Financial Review

Govemance

Accounts

Dither information

“The Wates
site team were
fantastic to
work with and
delivered a
quality job
under a tight
timefrome.”

Duncan Brisbone,
Senior Development
Monager John Lamg

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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FLEXIBLE
RESPONSIVE
COMMITTED

In a word, Wates




Marks and Spencer

We have been working with Marks and
Spencer for 12 years on a range of bt-outs
and refurbishment projects Cur most recent
work for the retailer is the upgrading of Its
in-store bakeries noticnwide from Devon to
the North ot Scotland to give them the look
and teel of on artisan baker Rather than
creating new stores Marks and Spencer s
focus is currently on maximising the value

of its existing outlets and improving the
brand expenence for cansumers As part

of that strategy, we are atso installing del
counters that sell a range of upmarket

fresh posta charcutene, cheeses and other
products intended to add a sense of theatre
to its food halls Both projects have a total
value of £10m

The workas logistically challenging as it
has to be carried out overnight so that
troding is not disrupted The baokenes
toke between 4 and 7 mights and the delis
up to 6 weeks

We have worked closely with Marks and
Spencer to ensure that we are flexible and as
responsive to ther needs as possthle so that
customers and stoff are not inconvenienced
by the wark The bakeries and the delis have
been very successful and have led toan
Increase 0 sales

Business ond Financial Overview

Chairman and Chie! Executive s Review

U}] Case studies

Busmess and Financicl Review

Governance
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“0ur relationship with Wates Retoil
has grown stronger over mony
years and 15 based on o high lavel
of trust Wates provides us with
high quality, innovative people who
take on more responsibility with
every project thay undertake for
us. We value the on-time, budget
and quality certainties that result
from our partnership with Wates.”

Richard Gillles,
Directer of Plan A ot Marks and Spencer

Wates Annuol Report ond Accounts 2012
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Kirklees —
Excellent Homes
for Life

Wates Living Space is currently building
445 new high quality affordable homes for
rent across 34 diflerert sites in Kirklees

The project which will have an

immensely positive impact upon the local
neighbourhoods and communtties includes
the new-buld of 140 homes for oldes people
- offening care ond support, 291, 1ond 2
bedroom homes for smaller households

and 42 homes specthcally designed for
wheelchair users

As port of our work in Kirklees we are
actively engaging with the local community
In order to provide tangible traming
opportunities and maximise the impact

of the scheme upon the local economy
This includes the creation of a total of

8 apprentice opporturuties 18 tramnee
positions and the annual provision of 4
1-week wark placements throughaout the
course of the project

Business and Financiol Overview

Chairman and Chief Executive’s Review

m Case studies

Business and FingnCial Review

Governance

Accounts

Dther information

‘“Wates has completed 44 units
out of 2445, 1 and 2 bedroomed
units These have been completed
to a very high stendard and
uhecd of programme. This has
helped enable us to keep tenant
satistaction levels higher

than anticlpated Wates hos
pertormed protessionally and has
continuously strived to improve
throughout the project

Oaniel Mulhadl, Pinnacie

Wotes Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Community Energy
Saving Programme

The UK government s £350m Community
Energy Saving Programme (CESP) 15 funded
by energy supphers and 1s intended to
inprave energy eficiency reduce fuet bills
and tackle thessue of fuel poverty in low
income households During 2012 Wates
Living Space wos awarded £40m of CESP
work Amang the schemes we've been
nvolved in cre 2 projects in Caventry to make
energy saving improvements for WM Housing
Group 10 over 900 Whitefniars homes in
Willenhall and 285 in Henley

The wark included installing repfacement
bollers, double glazing external wall msulation
and photovoltaic panels At the Willenhall
scheme alone, 188 PV installations were
completed, utihsing the government s
Feed-in-Tardl scheme While on sile we also
undertook a range of other works to improve
the overalf appearance of the homes

The programme also provided & week
work placements where students surveyed
residents on their energy bills and usage
The exercise will be repeated next yeer to
lrack the benehis of the schemea

Business and Financiol Overview

Chairman and Chief Exccutive s Review

IQI Case studies

Business and Finanao Review

Governance

Accounts

Other information

“It's cheaper for us to heat the
house now It has made a huge
difference, especially during

the cold weether. it looks 100%
better now that the rendenng has
been done and it will make a real
differance to the community ™

Koren Spence, Whitefrfors resident

Wates Annuol Report and Accounts 2012
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Picket Piece,
Andover

The Wates Developments team work on the
mast challenging and complex of sites

Over 9 years the business brought togather
43 landowners, compnrising 25 different
landholdings to create the Ist phose of

o large new village development outside
Andover in Hampshire

Following a plonning refusal by the Test
Valley District Councilin 2010 Wates
Oevelopments opted to pursue a planang
consent on appeal We chose to positively
engoge with the focal community gathering
local and political support Wates
Davelopments presented the scheme os
the answer to Test Vialley District Council's
housing shortfall ond won the support

of tnc Pickles MP Secretary of Stote for
Communities and Local Government

who granted the consent in 2011

Business and Financol Overview

Chairmaon and Chief Executive s Review

{ P | case studies

Business ond Financla Review

Governonce

Accounts

Other mformation

The team worked hord to conclude
complex (ond vaiue negotiations wth
landowners which enabled the purchase
and sgle of this site into a partnershup with
David Wilson Homes and buillding

of the scheme is soon to commence
Wates Developments 1s now committed
to delivermg the 2nd phase, afurther 470
homes and ensunng the development of
this new village 1s successiully miegroted
INtc the exsiing community

The Developmerits Team 1s committed

to growing our portfolio of land investments
every year and to contimue doing what

we do best selective mvestment in the

best sites in the best locations working
with the best partners, to develop much-
needed new homes

43

londowners

25

meces of land

g yaars of

negotiation

1 great
development

Wates Annus! Report and Accounts 2012
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Design company
PINCH expands
with Needspace?

Award-winning furmiture product and
ntenar design company PINCH moved
Into the Clapham North Arts Centre run

by Needspace? in 2009 and 1s now i ks
4th phase of expansion Into adjacent unis
at the site

Needspace? provides flexible managed
workspace and gives growing businesses the
flexibiity they need to thrve Russell Pich,
owner of the eponymous design company
says “We were looking for an architecturclly
nterestng environment and a company that
would be prepared (o offer us real flextbriity in
terms of the décor and dressmng of our space
to provide a showroom for our products”
Needspoce? allowed the business ta repaint
and install new hghting and a wood-buming
stove "They ve worked with us well beyond
what you d normally expect of a landlord and
tenant arrangement and have allowed us to
create the nght sort of environment for our
busmess ta flounsh There's o brlliant buzz
about the ploce,” he says

Business and Financiad Overview

Chalrmon and Chief Executive s Review

I[)!Cnseswdles

Bustness and Finoncial Review

Governance

Accounts

Othei information

“Needspace? has given us

the flexinlity to transform an
interesting architectural space
mto a fitting studio and showroom
for PINCH. They are for more
personable, dynamic and danng
than any landlords we have
previously worked with.”

Russall Pinch, Duner PINCH

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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‘ Business Review |

2012
BUSINESS
REVIEW

Wates delivered another

sold performance in 2012 despite
continung uncertamty in the UK economy
and difficult market conditions for the
construction industry as a whole

Our hentage, financia! stabihity and
willingness to adapt to meet our clients’
changing needs means that we have

continued to delver Ist ctass projects for
existing chents and to win new business in
an extremely competitive market

Among the prejects we have delivered this
year are Inspire Luton Sports Village, high
quabty stores for Waitrose and Marks ond
Spencer Simply Food, the new Prudentia!
Reguiation Authonty’s headquarters for
the Bank of England and the refurtishment
of Somerset House We also started an
innovative PFl contract delivening 445 new
homes, 44 of which were handed over to
the people of Kirklees m 2012

New homes for Luton

Wates Living Space has completed

the 1st phase of o series of projects to
buld 450 new affardeble homes tg reduce
the acute housing shortage in the town
Phase 1 of the New Homes for Luton
scheme has provided 16 apprenticeships
for Luton's residents and 12 work
expenence placements for local 6th form
college students
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EXTENDING OUR CAPABILITIES

Wates i ming Srace 15 a leoding affordoble
housing contractor and enjoyed a very
successiul year in 2012 with a turnover of
£455m* Among the highlights was our work
for Ortit Homes on the Larner Road Estote
i Enthn the London Borough of Bexley
s one of the largest projects of its type n
Lendon ond involves replacing 6 high-nse
blocks with 343 farnily homes

A signrficant proportion of our twmover
was due 1o the successiul mtegration of
Linbrook in 2011 which has put the business
at the farefront of the UK s affordoble
housing market This enables us to offer

a fully integrated range of services from
new-build, to refurbishment and energy
effinency solulions, os well os increasing
our presence in the £4bn responsive
mamnterdince sector It olso offers us

the potential to develop responsive
mantencnce natignally and m new sectors
such as education ond public bulldings

Dunng 2012, Linbraok renewed a number

of existing frameworks 1t wos clso awarded
acontroct with the London Berough of
Hamrow for £11m over S yeors and the London
Borough of Camnden — 115 biggest win of the
year (£40m over S years) It is 50 working as
part of g new venture with Town and Country
Housng Asseciation in Tunbndge Wells using
un innovytive madel (hal provides sigrificant
financial benefits

*Including shara ot Nt ventyres ond associote

SEIZING NEW OPPORTUNMES
INTHEENERGY SECTOR

Wates Living Space has also benehted
enormaously fram its strength and experience
inthe energy sector Dunng 2012, we

were awarded £40m of work os part of the
Government s Community Energy Saving
Programme (CESPY - a sizeable share of the
market CESP s funded by energy supphers
ond oims 1o imprave energy ethciency reduce
fuel bifls and tackle the issue of fuel paverty

in low-income househalds Our role involved
insufabing homes and nstalkng new boilers
and solar panels In 2013 a new scheme

£C0 - the Energy Company’s Obligation —

will be introduced to provide efficient centrai
heating and Insuiation {0 the rost vulnerable
peaple in soclety We are exploring the

mnst effective ways to delver our energy
commitments and serve communities through
local employment and training programmes
with energy supphers

Business and Finonciol Overview
Chawmon and Chief Executve s Review
Case studies

[ D] Busiress and Financial Review
Govemanca
Accounts
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DEVELOPING INNOVATIVE IDEAS TO DEAL
WITH THE HOUSING SHORTAGE

One of the biggest 1ssues facing the UK today
1 tha shartoge of new affordabie housing
Wates Living Space 1s working in partnershp
with the Homes and Communities Agency
Arms-Length Management Orgarusations
{ALMDs) housing ossocrations and local
authorrties, to provide new homes in jint
ventures using mnovative financol solutions.

Our extensive trock record ond expenence
means that we are an ideal partner for tocal
authorities ang housing asseciations to
step up to the challenge of providing much
needed affordable housing ecross the UK
The business delivered 22 600 new and
refurbished homes during 20t2 working with
131 different chients resconding to 138 DDH
different jobs

Linbrook invests in new venture
with Town and Country

The Linbrook team hes lounched o
new venture with Town and Country
Housing Group called Countrywise
Reparrs, which will deliver a repairs
sennce to oimost 6 000 propertiesin
the Tunbrnidge Wells area and create
employment foriocal peopla

Larner Road Estate, Erith

Living Spoce is creating 343 family
homes in the 1stphase of @ €£128m
houstng sctieme for Orbit Housing
Association to ¢reate g total of 523
naw homes {rbit Homes maneging
drector Poul High, says “Wates Lving
Space hes o fantostic track record of
delivenng high quality homes We ara
delighted to be working with them to
transtorm this oren”

Waotes Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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I Bustness Review '

“THE WATES DEVELOPMENTS
TEAM DEMONSTRATES
DRIVE, PASSION AND
PROFESSIONALISM IN THEIR
APPROACH TO PLANNING
THEIR COMMITMENT TO A
COLLABORATIVE APPROACH
AT THE ARBORFIELD MAJOR
EXPANSION IS LEADING THE
WAY [N ENGAGING POSITIVE
COMMUNITY SUPPORT FOR
THE DEVELOPMENT OF 2.000
NEW HOMES ™

HENRY SCRASE LANDOWNER
Aegean Trust Company Limited

Community engagement gt the
Arborfield mojor expansion

Wates Developments embarked on o
series of successful workshops involving
local community groups, providing the
epportunity to take part in the design of
the settlement exponston for 2,000 new
homes, 3 schools and a retaif centre

King Harry Park, St Albaons

Wates Bevelopments working in
partnership with Linden Homes, launched
its 13-acre prime site King Harry Park
close to the historic centre of S5t Albans
ond will deliver 150 1to 5 bedroom
homes between 2012 and 2014 The site
promises to be an cutstanding success.

DEVELOPMENTS TEAM
BUILD ON SUCCESS

Wates Developments delivered very sirong
results n 2012 Success wos achieved through
our focused strategy in land investment and
residentigl development The key returns

wera secured from land transactions and

hwgh performing residential joint venture
investments with some of the UKs lecding
house bullders

Oui hnonowl strength, corporpie stoldiy
and commitment to residenticl development
make us a strong and attractive partner for
bothlondowners and developers Wates
Developments’ unique blend of skils and
expertise inland acquisition and planning
cambined with commercial acumen produces
winning developments. This approach has
enabled us to acqure sgme of the best
development opportunities m the best
lacations n London and the South Eost

In 2012 we successfully secured plannng
consent for anumber of important residential
schemes Akey focus for the business was our
new village development ot "Picket Piece’ a
Ist phase 62 -acre scheme near Andover in
Hompshire with consent for over 530 homes
In a complex site assembly, bninging together
43 gifferent tandowners ond 25 land holdings
we successiully managed the acquisition and
sale of the site entering into o partnership with

Dawid Wilson Homes Over the next 10 yeors
we will deliver in excess of 1 000 new homes
and awde range of neighbourhood facilibies

Wwates Developments also secured valuable
planning periission on appedal for tha
re-tevelopment of o 3 acre subterranean
reservorr site in West Hompstead, London
winning acclomm for the development s

high quality and nnovative design for 16
five-bedroom hormes in a sensitive location
Further consents in East Grinstead, Worthung
and Cranleigh were achieved creating ¢
strong platform for future joint ventures
Dunng 2012 we secured arange of sites
adding 207 acres to our existing lond peortfolio
throughout London ond the South Eost now
totaling over 2 400 acres

wates Developments focus for the year ahead
refnains constant. to secure more new land and
10 continue (o succeed in delivering planning
permission balencing the needs of landowners,
and ther desire to optimise value, with the
needs of local commurities for well-designed
and benehcial developments We will continue
to support our partners by Investing In new
house bullding joint ventures despite the
on-going challenge of the housing markat

We plan to continue growing our exposure to
some of the best new developments in London
and the Seuth Eost.
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MEETING OUR CUSTDMERS'
CHANGING NEEDS

Qur customers are facing challenging times
Continuing uncertainty about the economic
chimate means that they are seeking ever-
greater volue far money and their needs

are changing The focus of our intenars and
retail custorners has generally switched from
major capital progrommes towards asset
management and upgrading existing stores
cnr offices where necessary, rother fhon
Investing In new ones

Wates has responded to its customers shift

in focus by mtegrating its Intenors and Retml
businesses under one leadership to provide

a national nfrastructure so that it can better
serve its customers from Cornwalt 1o the north
of Scotland across ther entire portfohos

Bringmgq the 2 businesses together
deepens and strengthens our operationai
and commercial teams giving us more
flexibiity, enablng us to share knowledge
ond respuices snd providing greater
responsiveness to customers

We are focused on defwenng interor ond
retail at-outs for example ihe new Prudential
Regulation Authority s headquarters for the
Bank of England, structural re-engineering

such os Royal May extensions ond the
refurbrshment of thewr distnbution faclities,
and the natignal roll-out of high volume work
for example in-store bakeries and dels in
Marks and Spencer stores across the UK

LONG TERM REPEAT RELATIONSHIBS

Tadoy we are focusing on delivering for
major high street retal brands supermarkets
retail landlords and thewr shopping centres,
banking, public and private offices including
our colluboration with our Construction
business to deliver the base build ond

fit-out for the new Microsoft resecrch
headquarters in Combridge

The banking and affice sector contnues Lo
be a growing port of the Wates Intenors und
Retal business end we are delighted to be a
part of the Lioyds One Contractor Allance
delivering collaboratively with partners fugh
street bronches, offices ond cntical dato
facilities across the UK We have a long term
relationshup with Amencan Express haowng
completed over 22 successiul prejects with
them We are currently working with them

to complete the 377 000 sg ft it-out of i1s
headquarters in Brighton and also with DLA
Piper on Lhe fil-out of i1s offices in London
We are working closely with retail londlords

Business and Financial Overview
Chairman ond Cluef Executive s Review
Case studies

rb_| Business and Financiol Review

Waitrose, Bedford — Structural
re-engineering and Fit-0ut

This structurad re- engineering ft-out
involved the refurbishment of an existing
furruture store in Bedford to creqate g

new Waitrose store The project provided
o fantastic opportunity to rewtolise an
under-used site and to delver substantial
benefits to the town inclucing a
signthcant number of new jobs

Governance
Accounts
Other nformation

such as Lond Securities for whom we have
worked on the refurtnshment of the 02
Shopping Centre on Finchley Road m Londan
and Hammerson an upgrades to the Oracle
Shopping Centre in Readwig

Asdo, Tesco and Marks and Spencer are
customers for whom Wates Interiors and
Retaul 1s working on a high volume roll-out

of in-store pharmacies cafés, bokeries and
Chick and Callact’ faclities Far Royal Mal we
arée creating reqionet distnbution centres and
we have fitted out part of the Selirkdges store
inthe Trofford Centre

Inthe last year Wates Intenors and Retail has
delivered aver 1,000 projects across the UK
Often logisucally challenging working in ive
environments or working out of hours — at
night and dunng the weekend -- so that our
customers trade 1s not disrupted

Lloyds Bank -
Nationel Roll Out

We have worked on 0 wide range of
projects for Lioyds Bank from overnight
PEC imstallations in High Street
tranches to office refurbishments all
with minmol disruption to troding

Qur work on the Lloyds Bank framework
will continue throughout 2013

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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‘ Buswess Review l

Selfridges, Trafford Centre,
Manchester — Refurbishment
and Fit-0ut

This high-profile re-fit in one af the world's
maost famous department stores had to

be meticutously plenned over 3 phoses
Our highly expenenced professional design
and retail teamns worked closely with
concept designers and nternal Selfndges
stakeholders to great effect to ensure
mmum dstuption to trading

Wates International, Abu Dhabs

In December 2012 Wates International
held a topping out ceremony at the

M Fon o ond Al Zokhar schools in Al

Ain Abu Dhaby The clhent expressed its
satsfaction at the progress made on
both projects wiuch have an outstanding
sofety record and are ahead of
schedule Dignitories in attendance
were particularly delighted to learn
about the traditlons of topping out and
were amused to hedr thet the brggest
challenge for the site team was locaung
on evergreen branch for the ceremony

ADGPTING MEW WAYS OF WORKING

As gur customers needs have changed

S0 has our ownway of working In arder to
defiver high volume projects we hove had to
pecome much more pdaptable fteable ang
responsive While competition in the market
IS intense, we have taken a sensible approach
to pniang so that we know we can deliver on
aur promise ontime and on budget safaly
Our expenence enables us to work closely
with gur customers to drive inethiciencies out
of the process and 1o explore new ways of
warking We have professional parteershups
n place that enable us to respond to
Lustomers needs faster and more ethiciently
with the cenfilene e thot quahty and satety
are not comprormsed

NEW OPPORTUNITIES

I'he nature of the retail business environment
15 evolving rapidly The growth of intemet
shopping means thot retoilers hove to work
much harder to prowide cansumers with

an expenence that will encourage them to
come into stores This provides us with new
business opportunities Marks and Spencer
for example, 1s roling-out in-store bokenes
and delis to enhance the shopping expenence
and Wates Intenors and Reta has worked

on over 292 of them We re also working wmith
Tesco onits ‘Chck and Collect concept which
offers customers the benefits of shappng
onhine with the added convenience of picking
up ther grocenes at a time that suits them

{n the ufice murket we are also seeing
New opportunines to deliver mgh quahty
refurbishment projects Componies are less

tkely to nvest in new office buildings in difficuit

times, but to keep therr employees motivated
and to boost productmity, they are refreshing
theirworkspoces Our expenence means we
are well placed to toke advontage of renewed
octvity in this sector In 2012 we delivered
high quality projects for a number of clients
ncluding the Home Oliice the Mimstry of
Justice the Bank of England, Amencan Express
DLA Piper and Jehn Laing We qlsg campleted
Otympic hospitality sutes for Deloitte anc
Amencan Express

Both intenors and Retol operated throughout
the year in extremely challenging trading
conditions, and consequently expenenced
some disapponting outcomes However

we remain confident that Gur extensive
copobilites longstanding relationshps with
some of the UK's best bronds, and agiity in
responding to customers needs are Just some
of the regsons why customers conunue to
choose Wates Intenors and Retall

OUR CONTINUED FOCUS
ONLANDMARK BUILDINGS

Duning 2012 Wetes Construction worked
with a number of clients to produce
tandmark butldings Iz Cambrnidge we ve
created a new state-cf-the-art, 78 000 sq ft
flagship headquarters for Microsoft Research,
enabling this global leader to refocate to
Combndge cily contre with sufhcient space Lo
support its future growth YWe've also worked
with Great Portland Estates on Mar¢ol House
{page 26) a commerctal development on

3 omalgamated sites on the corner of
Londons Regent Street and Margoret Street
Itincludes a new, 7 tloor modern office
bullding on Margaret Street which 1s clad in
Portland Stone to match the existing grode |}
Iisted tacade on Regents Street The buikding
has achieved a BREEAM Excellent rating and
provides enhanced sité biodiversity through
the introduction of alving green roof

This wos a chalienging project s the bor end
restourant operating (n the ground floor unit,
remaned open throughout the development
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DEVELOPING HIGH QUALITY
SCHOOLS ACROSS THE UK

Our education tearn has continued to
debver igh quality facihties aeross the

UK from pre-school centres, to primary

and secondary schools and to umversily
bulldings Gur expertise in this area 1s well
recognised and 1n 2012 we completed work
on the £1lm Campsmount Technology
College in Doncaster, which featured heavily
tn the james Review of capitel spending

on schools as an example of best practice
demonstrating how to build new schools
mare ciiciently and to prowde betier value
for money We are afso working on the £30m
Dixons Allerton Academy in Bradford which
will provide high quahty learming faciliues for
children aged between 3 and 18

Bunng 2012 we also worked on the £42m
Brrmingham Prnimary Places Programme
The city has to cope with a dramotically
increasing birth rate and needs to

provide 6,000 addittonal schogl places
Wates Construction bullt extensions to

20 existing pnmary schools taking on
averoge, 6 5 months each The project
used innovative Cross Lominated Timber
{CLT) technology, which uses spruce boards
stacked ot right angles and glued together
inlayers It s fost, efleclive and palances
gesthetrcs with robustness We were able to
delver schoo! extensions without ntruding
on the school timetabfe or doy-10-day
operations Inaddiign the use of CLT saved
£6m ond delivered substantiol carbon
savings of 4 262 tonnes

Our aim tor 2013 15 to be one of the leading
players in the government s £2 4bn Prionty
Schoals Building Programme whichwill
focus capital spending on those schools
most In need of Investment, rebuilding

and refurbishment We are also focusng
on retaining our place on the Notionol
Acedermes Framework, which will be up for
renewalin 2013 ard on retaining our current
posItion by winning new work on regional
frameworks The Free Schoals progromme
also oliers now opportumies which we will
actvely pursue

DELIVERING SCHOOLS FASTER
AND MORE COST EFFECTIVELY

Qur patented ADAPT School Solutipons
programme, which enables local uuthornties
to convert existing commerctal buidings
suth as offices nlo schaols ond to creale
new buildings ot signmcantly lower cost

was launched in 2011 and has attracied
interest from central and local government
Using o ground-breaking new model which
stondardises design ADAPT cuts the
construction phase of new school delivery,
typically fram 60 weeks to just 36 weeks

and can create capital savings of 40% for
new-build and 60% for refurbishments 1115
fast affordable and llexible and provides migh
quahty tearmng environmments where students
feel inspred We have enhanced the product
odded more eliiciengies and are planning Lo
promote it duning 2013 to meet the urgent
rieed for o more eflbcient ond cost-efiertive
way to deliver school ploces

Djanogly Northgate Academy,
Nottingham

We are working on the £2 15m expansion
of the school's buildings to coter for
growing demand for student places

The project includes the creation of B new
flexible classrooms o purpose built unit
to provide @ further 236 places for loca)
chuldren and on external play area

Business ond Finanoial Overview
Chawman ond Cteef Executve s Review
Cose studies
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Dixons Allerton Academy, Bradford

This £30m project has involved the
transfermation of on existing secondary
schoolin Bradford to cregte Dixons
Alierton Academy, an inspring educatonnl
faciity for children from pnmary age

to 6th form speciabsing in heclth and
science As part of Wates comautment
to the locol community we took part

i the UKCG's Open Doors Weekand at
the Academy which gave people the
opportunity to tour the site, learn more
about its development and find out about
some of the exciting coreer opportunities
avatlgble i construction

De Warenne Academy,
Doncaster

We used our ADAPT 5chool Solutions
pragromme to remadel and upgrade
existing teoching fociines and refurbish
the sports hall The project took just

54 weeks and the school remained
operational duning that time

‘Wates Annual Report and Aceounts 2012
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“OUR SURVEY SHOWS THAT
MANY UNIVERSITIES ARE
ALREADY ON THE FRONT

FOOT AND ARE iINVESTING IN
157 CLASS BUILDINGS AND
FACILITIES IN ORDER TO ATTRACT
STUDENTS AND TALENT WHILE
IMPROVING EFFICIENCY AND
CONTROLLING COSTS”

AN VICKERS
Reglonal Monaging Director —
Construction Londenond South

SUCCESS IN THE UNIVERSITY SECTOR

Universities are an important sector for
Wates and our educction team continues

to deliver high guohty stimulating leorning
envronments far students and stafl We often
work on live’” campuses where disruption
must be kept to @ minimum

Among the projectis we are workmg onis the
£54m Boldrewood Campus at the University
of Southampton This new facility, which aims
to position the University os an Engineenng
Centre of Excellence, will incorporate the
Lioyds Regrster Group Technalagy Centre
The Umiversity Engineering Centre of
Excellence and wil eventyally house a new
institute for Marme and Maritime Research

We gre also working with the Unuversity of
Essex, South Essex College of Further and
Higher Educaton and Southend-an-Seq
Borough Ceuncil on @ £22m project called
the Forgm - o new hbrary ond learning
faciity which provides the growing number
of students in Southend wath a hugh-quatity
hbrary gallery ond state-of-the-ost resetch
and learming faciicies
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POTENTIAL FOR FURTHER GROWTH

Universites tace a challenging future

with cuts in public funding of 12 6% ond
falling student epplications However

we cammissioned research that shows that
many universities are aiready on the front-
foot ond are investing i 1st ctass bulldings
and facilities in order to attract students

ond talent while improving efhcrency and
controlling costs Our research indicotes that
81% of UK universities surveyed will carry
out o mojor construchon project worth over
£5m within the next year Our expertise n this
sectar means we are well placed to captalse
on any Investment by university estates

DELIVERING HIGH QUALITY AND VALUE
FOR THE METROPOLITAN POLICE

As part of the Metropolitan Police s strategy
1o improve the qualty and ethciency ot

Its custodiol estate across London, Wates
Constructian has developed a number of new
custody facihties, In Croydon for example,

we buiit a new fit-for purpose 40-cell custody
¢ entre on an @xsting brownhield site in the
shortest possible time for the best possible
value The challenge was to provide more

for fess wthout compromising erther design
or build qualty Roger Harding, Director of
Construction for the Metropolitan Police said
“The Croydon Custody Centre 1s an excellent
example of what the public sector and
contractors can deliver with cleor strategic
objectives ond o willngness to mnovaie to
achieve aganst me gnd cost pressures”
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Your Future, Your Choiwce

Wates, in partnership with Business in
the Community {BITC) and o range of
businesses in Coventry took part i an
event calted Your Future, Your Choice ot
the Ricoh Arena in November [t grovided
interactive workshops and advice on
traning and employment epportunities
for 1,200 local yeung people ond is port
of a programme developed by BITC to
mspire businesses and schoots to work
together in supporting young people m
achieving therr potentiol

Wwates Annunl Report and Accounts 2012
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Business Review '

BUILDING ON OUR EXPERIENCE WITH
ICONIC ANDLISTED BUILDINGS

Wates has extensive expenence in hentoge
refurbtshment and we have continued to
strengthen our presence in this sector with the
successtul cormpletion of the refurbishment

of the eost wing of Somerset House Kings
College— one of London s most iconic bulldings
Additions ond olterations comed out in the iost
220 years had to be stripped out and structural
tepairs made to safequard the bulding's future
ond to bnng it up to modern standords

Durng the work we discovered the remains of
Soxon ond Tudor foundotions ond mstalled

a bespoke back-(rt gloss fioor to exhibit the
excavohons We olso crepted o perfect stone
replica of the orgmal cantilevered starcose

to serve new rooms In the buiiding's attic
Somerset House s east wing 1s now home to the
Coflege’s Schoct of Low and o new cubturc! hub
the Inigo Rooms, which apens the bulding up to
the public for the fwst time n 1ts history ond wos
opened by HM Queen Elizabeth Il as port of the
Diomond Jubilee celebrations

Lion Salt Werks, Northwich

We're working on the £5 5m restoration
of the lustoric Lign Salt Works in
Northwich, Cheshire which will open

as aliving museum mn 2014

ironmonger Row Baths, Isington

Owned by tshington Councy, thus weonc
historic Grade 1] listed buitding in the heart
of London's Oid Street was one

of the most challenging profects thot
Wates Construction has ever cartied cut
We successfully preserved the hentoge of
the butlding while significantly enhoncing
its environmentol specifications
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Metropoliton Police Custody Suites

Wa are using Bullding Iinformation
Modetling {BIM) as port of our work on the
£56m development of new custody suites
for the Metropolitan Police It enables our
people and our supply chain partners 1o
get o clear overview of the project and
saves time and meney

POSITIONING THE COMPANY
AS A THOUGHT LEADER

Wotes longstanding commitment to the
construclion secter Logether with ow firmly
held values and innovauve ideas gives us
the privilege and responsibility of being an
influengtal voice In the industry Consequently
n 2012, Wotes Construction comimissicned
an independent research project to identify
the trends and challenges facing higher
education estates The survey revecls that
attracting students s the mam driver betund
buiiding projects at UK universicies and this
wiil help to shape our future strategy for the
education sector in addition Wates Giving
sponsored areport No place 10 call home
The social impacts of housing undersupply
on young people by the Institute of Public
Policy Research (IPPR) Thus demonstrates
how housing undersupply — In combination
with a number of other social economic
and cultural forces —is having o real and
substonuai effect on the experiences

and future asprretions of young people

It provides a number of potential policy
responses INCluding the need to build mare
homes It also states that new ideos to create
pathways towards homeownarship for young
peopte are needed, as are reforms to the
private rented sector n which more and
maore young peopie find themselves for an
extended phase of therr lives We hope that
this report will contribute to the debate ghout
the housing crisis and galvanise government
and other bodies ta take action

Wates Living Spece w partnership with
the IPPR ond Orbit Group, olso co-hosted
a debate on Housing the Nation at the
Conservative Party conference in October
2012 This fnnge event was intended to
put housing at the top of the political
agenda, highlighting its importance for
economic recovery and supparting Wates
wider strateqy to influence government
pehicy in this area

Wates Giving has also sponsored a new
initiative by the UK Green Bulding Counci
that will create an online platform —

called Pimpoint that will enable built
environment professionals to idenufy the
best rasources, tools ond guidance avalable
Itwill go live in 2013 and demonstrates

OUl ON-QOING CommItment to sustainable
building practrces

WORKING WITH CUSTOMERS AND THE
SUPPLY CHAIN TO INCREASE EFFICIENCY

We recogrise that our customers and supply
chan are facing dificult ttmes which is why
we are working ever more closely with them
for gur mutual benaft To provide customers
with ncreased efficiencies we have used
Bulding Information Madelling (BIM) on a
number of projects ncluding custody suites
for the Metropalitan Palice at Wood Green
police station and First Street a new culturat
bullding in Manchester city centre BIM
procduces a virtual prototype of a bullding
before work begins 1t speeds up the design
process, streamiings construction ensures
that we cre procuning the nght products

for the build and reduces nsk Over the
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next 2 years we plan to use BiM acrass the
organisation in line with government targets
to use it on ofl publie construction projects
over ESmby 2016

In 2012 we also ntroduced a new commercial
and procurement structure which will help
mprave the competitiveniess of the business
for the next 9 to 10 years For the first time we
have central procurement managers in place
to ensuwie greater integration across the
businesses ond to strengthen our strotegic
relgtionstups with supply chan partners

NEEDSPACE? PROVIDING ENTREPRENEURS
WITHINSPIRATIONAL SPACE

Needspace? offers entrepreneurs and small
businesses affordable *iexhle mancged
workspace i prime locations Our aim s

to create a community of entrepreneurs
working to develop therr businesses alongside
others in a supportive and enterpnsing
environment This ethos together with our
flexible terms enables businesses to take
space for as ittle as 3months at a tune and
means that in 2012 Needspace? achieved
85% occupancy and its highest ever turnover
of £18m Tenants range from tradittanal
office based businesses to ¢ yoga studio,
bespoke furniture designer and an explorer
who plans to retrace Captain Robert Scott s
1912 trek to the Antarctic Qur planis to grow
the business by further increasing occupancy
levels ond to expond Into new sites as ond
when suitable property becomes gvartable

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Bustness Review

Supporting young
entrepreneurs

Wates Gwing is supporting projects
developed by students ot the Rovyal
College of Art's entrepreneur unit,
providing funding to devefop o number
of nnovatve products incuding a
bicycle powered machme for recycling
copper cable in indio

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES FOR PEOPLE

Wores hos o long-standing commutment

t0 supparting the communities in which

we work and 2012 was no exception

As angtional partner of Business in the
Communitys flagship education programme
Busmess Class ‘Wates currentty has 8
partnerships sponsored by Wates Giving,
locoted in Leeds Manchester Liverpool
Caventry Leatherhead London, Bristol

and Southampton We supported 2 400
stuglents through Business Closs events i the
2011/2012 academic year The exam board
for Business Class schoo! St, Matthews in
Manchester said “The centre has an excellent
relationship with @ notiongl construchon
company which provides comprehensive
support in specific canstruction skills and
generol employability skills to learners

We have also provided 389 days cf work
expenence for young pecple through our
Work Inspiration programme and more than
115 odults have taken port in gur Bulding
Futures progromme in 2012 aione with

57% of them moving mto employment or
further learring Wates continues to support
The Prince s Trust s ‘Get into Construction
programma, with Wates Giving funding,
which helped 726 young people gain work
expenencen 2012 Lostyear Paul Drechsler
also taok over the position of Chair of the
Construction and Business Services Group
which adrministers this programime

Changing Paths
stonemasonry project

Changing Paths, a chantable trust setup
by Wates with Wates Gving owords,
helps ex-offenders intg employment It
1S NOW runrng a stonemasonry trainng
project and those thot have token

part are now gething commuissions for
maintengnce work on cathedrals and
sted buildngs

We are also ¢commutted to supporting
those seeking a career In construction,
and gssocrated indusines Wates Givingis
supporting a number of Masters students
at University College Landon who are
studying the bullt environment planning
and architecture and it is prowding bursanes
for students at the University of Sussexn
law architecture and engneenng It s also
sponsoring a series of lectures on the use
of concrete in grchitecture at uiversities
across the UK

TRADING WITH BUSINESSES
WITH A PURPQSE

We set 0 goal to work more with socigl
enterprises ond have made good progress
with aver £3 8m troded with social enterprises
since lune 2010 Currentty we trade with

22 socafenterpnses on over 137 projects
and are exploring ways in which we can
integrate mare into our supply cham

Wates Giving hos invested £75,000n

o pilot brokerage system which wilhelp

the cons tructon industry identify sociol
enterpnses n the communities in which they
work and wath whom they can do business

GIVING SOMETHING BACK

Waotes employees and our supply choin have
continued to give therr time to support the
tocal communities in which they live and work
Bunng Wates annual Commumty Day they
donated 8,700 hours to deliver 90 projects
across the UK In addition cur Lend a Hand
vofuntaenng scheme reached 880 hours of
volunteenng by Wates employees equating
to avolue of more than £43120

33

Above afl it s about peopte




Business ond Finencial Ovenview

Chairman and Chief Executive s Review

Case studies

{ D [ Business and Financial Review

Governaonce

Accounts

Other information

“WATES HAS BEEN AT THE

FOREFRONT DF HELPING DRIVE

THE UTC FORWARD AND THEIR

CONTRIBUTION HAS BEEN

INVALUABLE TO EVERYONE

INVOLVED IN THE PROJECT"

MIKE SHARP

Prncipal, The Royad Greenwich UTC
Greenwich Umiversity Technical
College Partnership
Wates along wath Trensport for
London, 1s spensoning o new .
Unwversity Technical College {UTC) - Celebrating supply chain
o 600-place schoo) Far 14-19 yeor olds - performance
in Greenwich, London. In addition to the We recognise that we are anly as strong
hasiwc GCSE subjects of Enghsh, Maths, as our supply chain so in recognition
Science and IT, the UTC will speciabise of their hard work and professianalism
In engineening, construction, transport we introduced our 1st ever Notional Supply
and green technologies Itwill focus on Chain Awnrds which were judged agomst
developing the employment prospects & key performance arens. The strongest
of young peaple by engeging them in overall performance across the board was
fugh quolity practicol work ond business from Toureen Mangan which recenved an
related leaming. overwll Supply Chain aword

8th annual Community Day

Wates Community Day is hirgely
impostont to the Group ond oll our
people This year 1,084 employees,
customers ond supply chain portners
gave up their day jobs to volunteer thefr
time and expertise to help the focal
communities In which they work Projects
this year focused on educotional
activities as well os woodtand clearance
projects intenor and exterior building
refurbishment gardening end working i
Barnordo s stores nationally

Wates Annual Report ond Accounts 2012
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Scaling Kilimanjaro

An infrepid team from Wates took on one
of the toughest challenges - clmbing
Afnica s highest peak, Mount Kilimamaro
Altitude sickness and enormous bhsters
didn t put them oft and they raised over
£60 900 for Wates charnty partner
Barnardo s
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CONTINUED FOCUS ON SUSTAINABILITY

Our Reshaping Tomorrow iniictive provicies
a cleor focus to ensure we have a positive
impact on the envirenment and that we
support the communities in which we live
and work Among our many achievements
during 2012 we diverted 97% of waste from
londfll reduced our CO, emissions by 3%
and retarned our Platinum Plus statusin
Business in the Community s Corporate
Responsibility Index, the only contiactor
torecewe this accolade

Responsible sourcing

wates 15 committed to sourcing
responsibly We worked closely with
stuff from Great Portland Estotes
and from FSC accredited certification
body BM Trada to gain project
certification an 2 schemes for Great
Porttand Estates — Wigmore Sueet
and Marcot House

“GREAT PORTLAND ESTATES PLC

ARE COMMITTED TO DEVELOPING
SUSTAINABLE BUILDINGS

OUR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
BRIEF AND FRAMEWORK GUIDES
INFORM EACH STAGE OF THE DESIGN
AND CONSTRUCTION PROCESS
RESPONSIBLE SOURCING OF
MATERIALS IS A KEY ELEMENT OF THIS
PROCESS, WE THEREFORE REQUIRE
THAT ALL MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS
ACHIEVE FSC PROJECT CERTIFICATION
THE CO-0PERATION OF ALL MEMBERS
OF THE PROJECT TEAM JS ESSENTIAL
IN MEETING THIS REQUIREMENT AND
WE ARE DELIGHTED TQ BE WORKING
WITH WATES GROUP QN ACHIEVING
FSC PROJECT CERTIFICATION AT

33 MARGARET STREET AND 85
WIGMORE STREET”

MARTIN QUINN
Project Manuger, Great Portland Estates

Site Supervisor
Environmental Training

The UK Contractors Group, of which
Wates 15 o part 1s commutted to

impraving the envirenmental krnowledge
and skills within the industry We worked
in partnership with Costain and Skanska
and the UK s Sector Skiils Counci!
CIT8-Construction Skills to develop

the Ist notionolly occredited
environmental trotung prograrme for
site superisors and managers working
In the construction Industry It was a
good Intraducton and provided ¢leor
help on our legal requiraments,” says
ane of the participants, Tony Mitcheli of
0 Brnen Contractors

Wates Annual Repert and Accounts 2012
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Financial Review

FINANCIAL
REVIEW

GROUP
HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover
increased by
7% to £1.2bn*

Underlying
profit before
tox at £29.3m"™*

Net ossets
mcreqased by
9% to 70 2m

Cosh at bank
of £121.3m

CONSTRUCTION
HIGHLGHTS

Undertying
profit before
tax £23.4m™

Tumover
increqsed by
3% to £F 1hn*

Order book
of £1.6bn

DEVELOPMENTS
HIGHUGHTS

Profit hefore
tax increased by
154% to £9 2m

ncludes share of foint veniues
and assooate's tumaver

** Urderbying profit befova tox wated
before rest uCiunng coais ang
profti on si2 of nves meets

£1.2bn’

£29.3m”

GROUP TURNOVER 2012 UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2012
GROUP TURNOVER* GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX
[ | 22 o |

arlsl38 3 .
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GROUP TRADING PERFORMANCE

Fhe Group produced onother solid
operoting ond finenciol performance in
2012 Thus underlines the resiience of our
TONstiucuon acinvities in what continues
to be a challenging economic ond frading
environment and further reflects the
strength of the Group s overall porttalio

Group tumover including the Group s share
of joint ventures and associate increosed
by 7% to £1 2bn Hegdiire pre-tax prohts
reduced to £257m (201 £40 1m) with
underiytng profil before nan-récuinng
restructuring costs and sate of nvestments
down % at £29.3m (2011 £33 Om)

Bunng 2042 the Groupincurred restruciunng
costs of £4 9m relating mamnly to redundancy
payments Fhese costswere ncuired to
secure the long term future of the Company
and resulted in an overall headcount
reduction in 2012 of 283 creating onnualized
savings of aver £18 5m The busingss will
continue to target improvements to deliver
berter value and increased ethciency

Proit on sale ot investments £1 3m (201

£7 2m) retates 1o the sale of a PFlinvestment
and further details are provided n note 6 to
the finanoig! stotements

The balance sheet further strengthened
during the year with a 9% \ncrease in net,
assets to £70 2m (2011 £64.3m) A strong
cash position was marntained thioughout

2012 and the year-end cosh at bank was
£121 3m {2011 £132 im} The Gioup continuet
setective investmentn residential land and
development and commercidl propeity
neredsing s capial emplayed ta £76 6m
{2011 £73 8m)

The Group has m place o revabving

credit facrlity of £25m, although it has
remained unutiised, and the botance sheet
remains ungeared.

The foundotron of the long term family
ownership of the Wates Group 1s sustatned
fnonool strength ond stobility The tongible
ungeared nature of our balonce sheet
continues 1o give great comfort 1o our
customers, grospective customers ang
supply choin providing them the certainty
of covenant that they demand We go into
2013 with o substantal grder book £1 6bn
(2012 £2bn) andin o strong and resilient
financd position

CONSTRUCTION

The Group s canstruction activity tuinover
mciuding share of joint ventures ond
gssociate which includes Construction Living
Space and Intenors and Retail increased

hy 3% ta £1 oo Pre-tax prohts reduced to
£19 8m (2011 £48 2m) with underiying proht
before non-recurnng restructuring costs and
sale of investments down 25% at £23 4m
(2011 £31im), reflecting the challenging
market and opeéroting conditions
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DEVELOPMENTS

The Developments business continued

1ts establhshed strategy of creating value
through residential land management

In 2012 pre-tox prohtincregsed significently
to £9 2m (2011 £3 &m) with year-end capitaf
employed of £61 Zm (2011 £58 6m)

NEEDSPACE?

Needspace? provides flexible monaged
workspace across London and the South
Eost for small and medium sized businesses
Duning the year revenue ncreased by 8% to
L1 8m (201 L1 7m) returning o pre-tox proht
of £0 4m {2011 £03m) At the year-end
capiial employed in the business was £15 4m

CASH FLOW

The Group fimshed the year with a cash at
bark balgnce of £121 3m {2611 £132 1m)
Profits ofter tox and dwidends paed i the year
were £4 Bm but due to cne-aft poyments

to the pension fund of £5 7m, and on unwind
n operating cash {including the mpaoct on
deferred receipts on land sales of £14m),
there has been a net outflow in the year
Thisis portrally offset by an equity Injection of
£5m from shareholders

PENSIONS

The inancial statements reflect tne defined
benefit scheme deficit colculoted in
accordance with FRS17 (as amended) At the
end 0f 2012 the net dehoit was L33 2m (201N
£30 8m) The market value of the schemes
ossets wos £162 0m (2011 £149 Om} and the
net presen value ¢i the hobibies £205Im
(20N £190 tm) Ourning the yeor the Group
made specral cantibutians of £5 7m (2011
E) 5m} This hod no effect on the profit and
loss account for the year but reduced both
cash and (he pension deficit 1here was &n
actuarial 10ss in the yeor of £5 Im {2011

£8 8m) Pension chorges ot £5 4m {2011

£4 8m) were made to the profit and loss
account in accordance with FRSI7

SHAREHOLDERS  FUNDS
Movements in shareholders funds were

£m
Shareholders funds at 31 December 2011 6432
Proht lor the hnancial year 187
Pension movements 47
Daidends (139
Currency ransinoon difierence 03
Called up share capital 50
Revaluation reserve 05

Shoreholdess funds ot 31 Decerber 2012 702

TAX

The tax charge for the year was £7 Om, which
gove an effective rate of 27 3% (2011 24 4%)
This compares to the UK mamn corporation
taxrate of 24 5% The tax charge exceeds
the UK masn corporanion tax rate due to
disallowable costs in the Middte East end
amorusaton ot goodwill The Group s tox
habilities anse in and ore met wholly in the UK

DIVIDEND

Durning the year dividends tataling £13 Sm
(2001 £19 9m) were paid All of this refated to
the fing! dvidend for 201

WATES GIVING

The Group contributed £1 im during the year
to Wates Giving the chantable programme
of the Wates Famity Enterpnse Itust The
programme S pnonty continues to be
nvestment in local projects which benefit
communities for the long term

(Yo

HUW DAVIES
Chief Financiol Officer
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| Governance

RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

|

DEVELOP ONGOING
DEFINE IDENTIFY ‘af‘jiNESTSIFQ‘,ND ACTION PLAN REVIEW AND
BUSINESS ) OPPORTUNITIES ) JEl 0 MIMIGATE DWNERSHIP
OBJECTIVE / ANDRISKS D MRS RISK WITH OF RISK

ACCOUNTABILITY/  MITIGATION

RISK MANAGEMENT FUNDAMENTAL TO
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

Risk management 1s key 1o delivering project
success for gur customers and driving
sustainable growth for our stakeholders

Our customers reguire us (o provide
solutions, ond we must manage a number of
risks to do this safely on time and on budget

Our customers are also looking for partners
who are tnancially secure Wales has an
excellent trading position due to its many
years of carefut nsk management

The diogram above shows the nsk
martagement process withun the Group
The Boord leads the discussions relating to
risk ond prowides direction This approach
1s cascaded down the Graup through the
executive committee fnisk committee and
regione! boords (o indvidual project teams

ONGOING RISK MANAGEMENT

Wotes involves customers and partners In
agreeng risk matters and how these are
best miigated Aithough risk 1s managed
constantly on every one of our projects
we 0lso have sk management discussions
across the Group at the following key
check-points when

« Disrussing and agreeing the business
strategy

« Tendering fcr new work

= Planming for projects

= Manitonng existing projects

« Reviewing business performance

The main challenge for any company 15
its culture i respect of nsk management
At Wates, this essenticl part of our business

aperations s clearly led by the Board and
15 visthle to all our people Management
ofrisk 15 not something that 1s outsourced
to a specialist team it 1s embedded in our
processes and owned by everyone

SPECIFIC RISK MANAGEMENT

As expected, 2012 was another challenging
yeor; we descnibe beiow some of the key
areas of focus Inirastructure Investment
in both the public and private sectors was
limuted duning the year as a result of the
econamic downturn Qur respanse was

Lo devole siynificanl ime o 1Improving
our competitiveness and g seeking even
mare effectve solutions for our customers
Loss-making contracts caused by either
poor tendenng or peor project parformance
continued to be a nsk We are continuing
tomnvest in developing our commercial and
operationul people and pracesses

Inselvenrcy of both customers and supply
chain partners has been an Ncreasing
concern for the construction mdustry

Steps takenn 2012 were robust which means
the impact on our customers hos been low

In 2013 we expect 10 see more inancial
challenges for our supply choin and are
developing our gssessment and momitanng
actmities further

Another nsk relates to our reputation which
we manage constantly Itis in this area that
we have focused o high level of attention
raising awareness of s importance with our
people and troiming 1n the hugh profile aspecis
of competition law and the Bribery Act
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RISK

POTENTIAL IMPACT

MITIGATION

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT.

Our chients may cancel postpone or
reduce existing of future projects due to
the effects of glchal economic conditions

Significant changes in chert spending
or tnvestment plans may adversely
affect our order book ond ultimately
lurnover ond profit

locus onrepeat business and strategic clients and market sectoss
Brood exposure to construction market Sectors metigates the risk of
changein any one market sector Exploration of new markets

TENDERING

We may not be successful gt winning
tenders for new work or tender emors/
decisions adversely affect pesformance

Not winning work orwinring work at
enunprofitoble pnce 5o adversely
affecting order book ard margins

Significant utterton o pard to the tendering processes and
the quolity of the presentations to potential ustomers
Regular feedback s sought to examme potential iImprovements

Defined outhority tevels exist for the approval of alf tenders
with allmajor ond sigihcont contracts subjected to Group
review and approval

PROJECT DELIVERY

Projects may not be delkvered to our high
standords of safety an time on budget
and to the required quality

Moy cfiect the prohtability and
reputation of the Group and ability to
secura repeat work

The nsk s ritigated by allocating the nght people cperating
controlled pracesses and rigorous recntily proiect reviews.

Safety and Operational Excellence inrtiatives seek to continuously
improve processes and contrals

TRADING PARTNERS

Heightened exposure to counterparty rsk
1e suppliers subconiractors consultants
chents jomt ventyre partners ong iinonciol
nstrtutions

This risk mostly relates ko the
crediworthingss of ciients and stabity of
our supply chain but could also include
default not caused by insolvency

Fallure in counterpartes could
result in non-collection of amounts
owed of disruption and delays to
contract progress

Rigoraus statulity checks ore carned out for al counterparties bafore
contracts are entered IntG Ongoing reviews are carned out on
regutor bosis 10 mitigate fisonc ai o disrupuon exposure

Speaigbsed insurance (Subguard} is also taken out i our
Construction business to ndernnify ys and our clients against
subcontroctor detault

PEOPLE

Emplayees may not have the rigit skdls
1o cope with a radicaly changing and
demanding market

Without appropnately skilied and
troined people our abity to deliver
successful contracts and our future
growth may be effected

Qur business 15 all about people thew experience ther quality
ond they ability to work in teams There 15 sigruficant facus on our
employee propsition, including recruitment, raining chollenge
reward and being the employer of choice

FINANCE AND LIQUIDITY

Cash and tonger-term financing may
reduce If cash s not callected and costs
not controlied

Reduced grewth and expension
opporturwties and ability €& pay
suppihiers on yime

Balance sheet and cash management 1s closely controlled by our
Finance team including dely reporting cash forecasting mvestment
anaysis and scenario madeling High cash levels ore mantained
generally on short-term depastt

PENSION:

Changes in longevity inflation and
nvestment assumphons motenally
nffecting the pension tund

Additional funding may be required
und coudd huve a substantial effect on
our balance sheet

Steps have been taken over the past 10 vears to lessen the
exposure, ncluding the clesure of the scheme to new entrants in
20002 and henefit curtamentin 2007

The performance of our pension scheme 5 reguiary reviewed by the
Group and the Trustees of the pension scheme who as appropriate
take advice from externat consultants

REPUTATION.

Qur good standmng withun the £onstruction
ndustry could be affected if business
conduct felts below our igh standards or
il we qre not seen (o comply with fegal or
requlatory requirements

The dilution of our brand name may
adversely affect proh*ability, growth
ang impact across the industry ond
COmMMUMtes we work in

We clearly set out our expectations for our employees for deoling
with all stakeholders

The Code of Contuct and continued troining SUpPGIEs our employees
in delwvering to the highest standards of ethics and integrity
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PALIL DRECHSLER
Chawman and
Cheef Executive

Poul joined Wates
Group in 2004 as
Chuef Executive
and was appointed
Charmon and Chief Executive n 2006
He was previgusty an Executive Director of
ICl, Chairmen of IC1 Pension Trustees and a
member of the World Business Council for
Sustamable Development He 1s the Senior
Non-Executive Director of Filtrena and
Charman of its Remuneraten Committee
Pauhis a board member of the CB and
of Business in the Community wherg he
1s Chawman of the Education Leadership
Team Paulrs also Chair of the Princes
Trust Construction and Business Services
Leadership Group end ¢ member of the
Tninsty College Dublin Business Schoat
Advisory Board

HUW DAVIES

Chief Financial
Officer and Company
Secretury

Huw was appointed

Chief Finonaiol Officer

of the Wotes Group
Board 0 2005 He was previously Heod of
Carporate Finance at Taylor Woodrow and
hos held key positions withKPMG Ernst
and Young and the Government of Oman
Huw 15 o member of the Wates Developments
Executive Committee, which he chawed until
rmid-2012 ond ¢ director of Needspace?
the Wotes Group monoged workspace
division Hes Chairman of the BITC South
East Adwisory Bogrd and 1s HRH The Prince
of Wales Ambassodor for responsible
business in the South East He was a Non-
Executive Director of WSP until July 2012
and s a Trustee of ine childrens
commumcatign chanty 1Can

BAVID SMITH

Cluef Operating
Officer and Managing
Director, Wates
Construchion

Daove started his career

In construction as @
surveyor with Sir Robert MeAipine He joined
Wotes in 1985 later leading the specialist
refurbishment division in London In 1999
he became MD of Wates public sector
bustiness ond in 2005 he was appointed MD
of Wates Constructian, taking responsibiity
far the Company s education, comimercial
and puble sector work Dave was appointed
to the Wates Group Board in 2009 Hes
the Company s representative for the UK
Contractars Group ond chairs the UKCG
Heglth and Sofety Leodershup Group

JAMES WATES
Deputy Charrman

James joined Wates

Constructionin

1983 and the Wates

Construction Board

as Marketing Director
in 1994 He was appointed to the Wates
Group Board in 1997 He 1s Chairman of the
Nominanuons Commiitee and g member
of the Remuneration Committee Qutside
the Group James is (nvolved with several
industry badies. He s Chawonan of CITR-
ConstructionSkilis Charrman of the UK
Contractors Group g Vice Chatrman of the
£BI Construction Counci, President of the
British Caunril for Othces o Cammussioner for
the UK Commission for Employment and Skills
and Past President of the Chartered Institute
of Bulding He s o Trustee of the Bulding
Research Establishment and the College of
Estate Menagement, a Gevemnor of Emanuel
School amember of the Court of Governors
of the University of Westminster Vice
Charman of Queen Ehzabeth s Foundation
for the Disabled and @ member of the London
Regianal Counai of The Prince s Trust He s
cfsc a patron of the Wates Family Enterprise
Trust In January 2012 James was awarded
the CBE for services te Construction and the
Chanitcble sector

TIMOTHY WATES

Director

Trm started fus career

at Cazenove and Co

pror to jorning

Wates Group n 1990

He re-joined the Wates

Group Board in 201,
having previously been a director of the
Group between 2006 and 2008, ond1sa
member of the Audit Committee He Chours
Wates Developments and the Wates Pension
Fund and 1s Chairmen of the Wates Family
Council - the Family Shareholder forum
He 1s Vice Charrman of the Coast to Capital
Local Enterpnise Partnership and o
Non-Executive Director of Tampopo and
Pedder Property Tim s a Trustee of varnous
Wates Family charities, a Director of the
Chink Chanity and a School Governor He has
an MBA from the judge Business Schoot
University of Cambndge

ANDREW WATES
Director

Andy joined the Wates

Group n 1995 having

spent b years gaining

experience of the

construction industry
wth Costain Construction ond John Shreeves
and Partners Andy was appointed to the
Wates Group Boardin May 2011 He 1s a Non-
Executive Director of MynodCEG Trustes of
the Wates Family Enterpnse Trust Norman
Wates Memonal Trust and Construction
Youth Trust Formerly the Maraging Director
of Wates Intenors Andy was appointed the
Groups Portfolio Development Director in
2012 to lead advancements in the Group s
lang term nvestment portfolio He holds an
MBA trom Rofiey Pork Business School
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CHARLES WATES
Director

Charlie s a chartered

surveyor with over 10

Years expenence in the

commercial property

sector He 1s founder
and joint Managing Director of Needspace?
the Wates Group managed workspace
division Chasdie joined the Wates Group
Baard n May 2011 and 1s a member of the
Developments Executive Committee Heisa
rrember of the Brinsh Councit for Offices and
a Governor of Dawnay scheol

JONATHAN WATES
Director

Having started his
career ot Grand
Metropolitan (now
Mogeo) Jonny joned
Wates Developments
in 1995 and dater held the position of
Group Marketing Director untill 2006
He was appointed to the Wates Group Board
In 2008 He s a Non-Executive Director
of Gambodo Lemited ond Charrman of
MynadCEG aprovider of on-site renewable
energy solutions Jonny i1s a Trustee of
the Wates Fomily Enterprise Trust the
Willlom Wotes Memorial Trust, a Governor
ot Cranleigh Schoot and has an MBA from
Cranfield University

DAVID BARCLAY
Independent Non-
Executive Director

David was appointed
as @ Non-Execubve
Drrector of Wates
Group in December
2012 and s a member of the Remuneration
Commuttee David s Deputy Chairman of
The John Lews Partnership ond chers thewr
Remuneration Comiruttee He also holds
Non-Executive positions at The British Library
and Wessex Water Services where he chairs
the Aucit Committee Previcusly he held
the post of Senior Independent Director of
Gartrmore Group and was a Non-Executive
Drrector of VT Group Davids career In the
City in¢luded roles as Vice-Chewman of
Dresdner Klenwort the investment bank and
Head of European Corporate Finance at Nat
West Markets He previously spent 10 vears
in the UK civil service, induding 2 years as
private secretary to the then Prime Minister,
Margaret Thatcher

PETER JOHNSON
Independent Non-
Executive Oirector

Peter was re-appomnted

to the Wotes Group

Boardin May 201

having previcusly been
a Director of the Group between 2002-
2006 He s the former Chauman of Rank
Group and the Senior Independent Director
of Bunzl Peter s Vice President of the motor
ndustry chorty BEN ond Vice President of
the Institute of the Motor Industry He has
been involved wth the cutomotive industry
for more thon forty years with Rover Group
the Marshall Group of Companies and was
former Chairman of Inchcope

Business and Finoncial Qverview
Chairman and Chief Executive s Review
Caose studies
Business and Finencial Review

| | Govemance
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GRAEME MCFAULL
independent Non-
Executive Director

Groeme was appomnted
Non-Executive
xrector of Wates
Group in 2009 and
has charred the Audit Committee since
July 2011 He s also o member of the Wates
Remuneration and Nomingt:ions Committees
He is currently Executive Chairman of Oelin
Capital and Chairman of the chanty
Transaid Graerme was previously Chief
Executive of Wincanton

FRIEDRICH
TERNOFSKY
Independent Non-
Executive Director

Fritz wos oppointed

Non-Executive

Director of Wates
Group in 2006 He s Chormoan of the
Wates Group Remuneration Commuttee
and a member of the Audit Committee
Fritz 15 Charrman ol Albion Income and Growth
VCT and a Director of Graysons Hospitality
Assoriotes {port of Groysons Restourants)
Fritz was ¢ former Senior Non-Executive
Director of Punch Taverns a mam beard
director of Compass Group and untid 2011
Chairrnan of Xew Green Hotels

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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1 PAUL DRECHSLER
Chairman and Chief Executive

2. HUW DAVIES
Chief Financtal Officer and
Company Secretary

3 DAVID SMITH
Chief Operating Officer ond Managing
Director, Watas Construction

4 HELEN BUNCH
Managing Director, Wates Intenors
and Retail

Helen joined Wates in 2006 as Group
Strategy Director with fifteen years of
international sales, marketing and business
management expenence She workedn g
number of differcnt dwisions of IC! basaed
at vanous twnes in Europe, Jopan and
Amenca Helen became Managing Director
of Wates Retail in Jonuary 2011 and took
onresponsibility for the Interiors business
in June 2012 Helenis schooi governor ot
Westminster Academy

5 ANDY HOBART
Managmg Drector, Wates Living Space

Andy was previously Monaging Director

ot Balfour Beatty Workplace, a E600m
turnover support services business
employing over 8,500 peaple in this role
and hus previous role as Divistonal Managing
Director of Rentokil, he has extensive
experience of dealing with Public Sector
Chents Andy has an excellent track record
of strateqic development, organic and
acquisitive growth operatronal excellence
and chent satisfoction Andy joined Wotes
wn Decemnber 2012

6 JOHN HOWELL
Group Production Director

John spent aver 30 years with Bowis Lend
Lease, nsing through the ranks to become
Operattons Director ond subsequently MO

of Bowis Lend Lease {South) In 2007 John
joned Developers Condy and Candy as Group
Construction Director where he oversow o
number of industry-leading developments
ncluding the prestigious One Hyde Park
scheme He has maost recently been wath
Galiford Try to deliver its Athletes Village
project ond 15 amember of the Constructing
Excellence Steening Group John joined Wates
as Group Production Dwector in Jonuary 2013

7 STUART TOGWELL
Group Commerciel Director

Stuart jomned Wates as a trainee surveyor

In 1986 and has progressed through

hine monagement to hus appomtment in
September 2011 as Group Commercial
Director With aver 25 years of expenence
Stuart is responsible for all commercigl
activities in the Group including surveying,
nisk management legat supply chain
management and tendenng and hos
expenence of most procurement routes from
PFl to long term partnenng contracts and
most construction products ranging from
£2m to over £100m in size across the UK and
mare recently the Middle East Startso
member of the RICS UK Project Management
Professional Group Board ond also sits on the
(Bl South East Council

Business and Finanool Overview

Chowman ond Chief Executive s Review

Case studles

Business and Finandol Review
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B8 JULIATYSON
Group HR Director

Julia joined Wates as Group HR Director in
2006 As a career HR professional she

has over 25 years expenence of working
with businesses to generote success through
peaple that creates oppariunities

for personat growth She spent her early
career with the Boots Company Marconi
and TOG later working for Centrica RBS and
Barclays $ubo1s the Executive Sponsor of the
Wates Skills and Employabdity Programma
and the Wates Community Investment
Programme, including Building Futures
Volunteenng and Apprenticeships Sheis

a leading campaigner for Inclusion within
the Construcuon sector chaifing the UXCG
Dwversity Group and i1s member of the CBI
Employment and Skilis forum

9 PETER WHITTLE
Group Strategy Qitector

Peter has extensive UK and interngtional
business strategy ond operating expenence.
His previgus roles inciude Board Director
and Hegd of Strategy at Tarmac Group
where his responsibilities included group
strateqy marketing commumications
technical and alse business davelapment
in the Middle East Indig and China Peter
has held a variety ol rales in engineering
services paints speciality chemicols and
was a Director at the Met Gthice Heis olso
o strategic advisor to a UK Charitable Trust
Peter jomed Wates in Aprit 2011

IAN BURNETT

“l would like to take this opportumty to thank fan Burnett Manoging
Ouectar of Wates Lving Space until December 2012 for hus contrbution
to the development of Wates over the lost 18 years”

Poul Brechster Chaxman ond Chief Executve
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The directors present ther onnuatreport ond oudned finonciol statements for the yeor
ended 3! December 2012 This report should be read in conpunction with the Chairman ond Chief
Executives Review the Corporate Governance Report and the Directors Remuneration Report

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Groug s one of the UK s leading construction contractors with a substantial portfolio of
private and public sector projects, ond 1s a residentigl land developer The Group operates in
the UK and has a developing business diviston in the Miuddle East A review of the Group's
business, progress dunng the yeor ond outlook for 2013 ond beyond s included in the Business

Review on pages 26 to 41

RESULTS AND DIVIBENDS £000s
Profit on ardinary uctivities before taxation 25735
Toxation {7024)
Profit for the hnonool year 1B

The drectors declored dividends in 2012 totaling £13 865 000 (2011 £19,912 000)
These were paid on 16 Aprl 2012 No furiher dividends have been declared inrespect of the
financial statements Lo 31 December 2012

HEALTH £ SAFETY

The Bourd remains commutted o the efiective monugement and monitonng of health and sofety |
and providing o sofe working environment for all employees and partners and keeping members [
of the public with whom the Business comes into contact free from harm \

EMPLOYEES

The Group s an equal opportunities employer and promotes an environment free from
discrmination herassment and wictimisation where everyone receives equal reatment and
career development regardiess of age gender nationality, ethric anigin, religron marital Status
sexual orientation or disebiity Al decisions refgting to employment practices ore objective
free from bias and bosed sclely upon work criteria and ndwedual ment

The Group gives full and fair consideration to opplications for employment made by disabled
persons and encourages and assists the recruitrment, traning, career development and
promotion of disgbled people The Group endeavours to retain and where appropriate retrain
those employees who become disobled dunng the course of therr employment

The directars recognise the mpartance of good relations and communication with employees

os fundomental to acheeving the Business strateqy and fong term objectives The Group s

Annual Roadshow which 1s apen to off employees 1s the forum by which the directors inform

and update stoff on the Busingss performonce ond outlook for the future The Groug also holds
a conference twice 0 year for its top 50 business leaders to discuss business priorities and 10
share business knowledge and practice across the Group Inadditon regular formal and informal
meehngs are held at Business Unit ane regronal levels and further communicanon s effected
through the use of In-house magazines, electronic bulletins notice boards the Company website
and Chowmans regular Blog

The Group 1s committed to iImproving the skills of employeas through trairing and development
ond through nurtunng a culture in which employees feel valued for ther contnbution and
motivated to achieve therr full potential

Statistics relating to the average number of people employed by the Group duning the year can
be toundinNote 4 to the Accounts
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate responsibility continues to remain
anntegral part of the Group's business and an
outline together with examples of the ways in
which our corporate responsibiity principles
are appled, con be found on pages 38 to 41

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group & dedicated to theresearch and
development of mnovative canstruction
methods and techniques focusing on areas
such as project delivery, the devetopment
and integration of new matenials ond energy
efficiency solutions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Detatls of the Group's share copital ore set out
in Note 18 to the Accounts

ARTICLES OF ASS0CIATION

The Company s Articles of Associotion may
be gmended by g special resclution of the
Company s shoreholders The current Articles
were adopted by shareholders on

13 Novernber 2012

CONFUCTS OF INTEREST

The Company s Articlas permit the Board

to consider and, if deemed fit to authornse
situations where g director has an interest that
conflicts or moy possibly confict with the
interests of the Cempany The Boord considers
that the procedures in place for reporting and
consienng confets of nLerest are efleclive

DIRECTORS INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Company's Articles of Association provide
tor the mdemmihcation of its directors and the
company secretary to the extent permitted by
the Companies Act 2006 and ozher applicable
legisiation, out of the assets of the Company
N the @vent that they incur certan expenses n
connecton with the execution of therr duties
in addition, and 1n common with many other
companies the Company has msurance in
favour of s directors company secretory and
ather ollicers, in respect of certam losses or
hatnlities to which they may be exposed due to
therr office

Certoin directors benefited from gqualifying
pensian scheme indemnity provistons dunng
the financial yeor gnd benedt from these ot
the dote of this report.

DIRECTORS

Biograph:cal details of the directors of
Wates Group as at 31 December 2012 are
shown on poges 46 and 47 Nick MacAndrew
retired 0s a directcr of the Group with effect
from 26 Aprd 2012

Biographical details of the Wates Execulive
team ore shown on pages 48 and 49

lan Burnett and Rod Stewart retred os
members of the Executive Commuitee in 2012

POLICY FOR PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

The Group agrees payments with its supphers
and subcontractors on an ndividuad contract
basis rather than following a formal code

The Group s policy 15 t¢ abide by these agreed
terms whenever it s satished that the suppliers
or subcontroctors have provided the goods

or services i accordance with the controctual
terms and conditions The Group mamtans

a good reputation for consistent and timely
settlement of supplier accounts

DONATIONS

During the year the Group mode chantable
donations emounting to £1,090 000

The 8th annual Wates Commurity Day

wos held on 21 September 2012 Our entrre
waorkfarce and many of our supply cham
partners and customers volunteered in excess
of 8700 man hours and donated matenals to
90 commumty projects around the country
Wates Gving the chantable programme of
The Wates Family Enterprise Trust donated
£25,000 to chontable organisations that we
worked with on the day

Durng the year a subscription of £50 080
wos pard by Wates Group Services Limited to
the Conservative Party

GOING CONCERN

The Group has conuderable financial
fesources together with o strong forward
orcer book with a number of customers and
suppliers acrass different geographic areas
and merket sectors As a consequence the
drrectors believe that the Group 1s well placed
to effec hvely mongge the prncipa! business
risks ard uncertointies set out on poges 44
and 45 The directors have o reasonable
expectatan that the Company has adequate
resources 10 continue in operational existence

Business ond Financiol Overview
Charman and Chief Executive s Review
Case studies
Buuress and Financial Review

[ ] sovernance
Accaunts
Qther informetion

for the foreseeable future Accordingly,
the directors continue to adept the going
concern basis in prepanng the Group's
hnoncial siatements

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who s o drector at the

dote of opproval of *his report confirms that

I so far as the director s aware there 1sno
relevant cudit information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and

2 eachdirector has taken alil the steps that
he/she ought to hove taken as o directorin
order to moke himself Merself aware of any
relevant audit informotion and to establish
that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that nformation

Thvs confirmation 15 given and should be

interpreted in accordarice with the provisions
of 5418 of the Componies Act 2006

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2013 Annual Generul Meetng of
the Campany wil be held on Tuesday
30 Apnt 2013

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There were no post bolonce sheet events
requinng disclosure

Approved by the Board of Directors on
March 2013 ond signed on its behalf by

1

D H DAVIES
SECRETARY

Wates Annual Report ond Accounts 2012
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board firmly bekeves that good business
and sustained performance derwves from good
corpgtare govirnance and remains firmly
comimitted to achieving te highest stondords
in the interest of alf stakeholders Governonce
enables busmess to be conducted responsibly
with openngss ond mtegnity ond in accordonce
with all laws and regulations to which

business actwnes are subject Govemance

15 focused across the entrs business and not
just af Boord level which enables stroteqic
ohjectives to be met value to be created and
a sustainable business tg be budt for the long
term The Board 1$ clear that by doing the
nght things in the nght way the Group can
protect its brand reputation and relotronships
with shareholders, custorners emplayees,
supply ¢hain and the local communities in
which its works

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company s fully comphant with the

UK Corporate Governence Code except
where as o family-owned company
appropriate alternative procedures gre

in place, or elements of the Code are not
applcable Throughout the year ended

31 December 2012 the Group complied

with all principles of the Code except that
the rote of the Chairman ond Chef Executive
was exertised by the some mdividuot

Paul Orechsler The Wates fomity and Board
consider that having @ joint Chairman and
Chief Executwe s appropnote for the current
ownership structure and thot robust controls
are maintoined which engble the Group to
beneft from tus leudershig exgerence

ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN

As Chairman and Chief Executive Paul
Orechstar is ultimately respons ible for
apprarsing the Board ot all matters affecting
the Group and its performance He 15 also
responsibte for the effective operation and
choinng of the Board and ensunng that ali
directors are able to play a full part nits
actmvities The Chairman ensures effective
communication with shareholders and

that afl Board members are oware of the

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE IN THE YEAR

views of shareholders, As Chief Executive ‘
he 15 responsible tor leading the Executive
Committeein runring the Group s business, '
including formulating strategy preposals for
Boord opproval ond ensunng thot the ogreed
strategy is mplemented in a timely and
effective manner

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Boord consists of a Chawman and Cheaf
Executive Chiel Finuncir Oicer Cluet
Operoung Officer four independent non-
executve dwectars and fve famuly diwectars
The number and calibre of independent
non-executive directors on the Boord
together with therr diverse backgrounds ond
experiences ensure that the principies of the
UK Corporate Governance Lode are met

The drectors update thewr skills knowledge
and farmilanty with the Company by attending
appropriate external seminars ond training
courses meeting with semor management
and visiting regionat and divisional gperating
offites Aninduction pragrarmme is ovailloble
for all new directors which 1s tailared

to specific expenence and knowledge The
Board beligves that the independent non-
execuyve drectors are wholly Independent

TYPE OF MEETING BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE { REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Number of Principal Meetmngs held 9 4 4
Number of Meetings attended by
Paul Drechsfer Charman/CEQ 9 [4] 4}
Jomes Wates Deputy Chairmaon 9 - 4
Huw Davies Ctef Finenaial Qficer 8 (4] -
Dawid Smith Chiet Operating Glhcer 9 - -
David Barclay Nen-Executive Director I* - 2"
Peter Johnson Non-Executive Director 9 - -
Nicholas MacAndrew Non-Executive Diwector 3 2" i
Graeme McFautl Nen-Executive Director g 4 3
Fnednch Ternofsky Nen-Executive Director 9 3 4
Andrew Wates Dwrector g - -
Charles Wates Director g - -
lenathon Wates Director 9 - -
Timothy Wates Duector 9 4 -
Joned duing 2012 “*resigned durng 2012 [ 1 Grockets mean attendance by swatution 1ot os O member

52

Abova all it s about pecple




in that they hove no material business or
relatronstups with the Group that might
influence their independence or judgement

The Board 1s responsible to shareholders for
the success of the Group There 15 a formal
schedule of matters reserved to the Boord,
including the determination of the Groups
long term drection business cbjectives key
policres and strategy The Board olso monitors
business performance and reviews nsk
controls The Board has delegated authority
for all day-to-day monogement of the Group s
affars to the Executive Committee

The Board hod o progromme of mine principal
Board meetings in 2012 plus 2 cdditional
days for the annuat strategy conference
with the Executive Committee The Boardis
prownded with regular and tmely mformation
on the finanainl performance of the Group
together with reports on operational matters
market conditions sustamnabiity competitor
environment and other relevont 1ssues

The directors hove equal vouing nghts when
making decisions except the Chairman who
has a casiing vate All directors have access
1o the advice and serwvices of the Company
Secretary and may if they wish take
professional odvice ot the Group s expense

From time (0 ime matters anse which requee
urgent approval prior to the next scheduled
Boord meeqng and in such instances
approval of all directors 15 sought vio a
telephone conference call Directors unable
to attend are mvited to provide feedback to
the Chairman prior to the meeting

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD IN 2012

Buring the year the Board approved

and endorsed

= the Annual Report ond Accounts

= Group cnd Business Unit budgets

= strategic plans and cross theme prionties

= capital allocahan and nvestment prionties,
= lgnd and joint venture investments

« thessue of new prelerence shares, and

« continued personal development of the
Executive Commuttee

They alsa considered and reviewed

« the mpart of the prevaiting economic
conditions on the Group s short and iong
term strctegies

« mgnogement's response ta didllenging
maorket conditions

« Lompetitor anaiysis ond benchmurking

« patentiol funding models tor soCial housing
schemes,

« the Groups Risk Register and mitigation
controls

« corporote responsibity 1ssues
+ succession plans for semor management

They also recenved

« prescatations krom cach of the Business
Units and Function Heads, providing
updates on operationol commercial
and financial performance and nsk
management

« progress reports on the Middle Eost
bustness

= updates on progress aganst the stralegic
plon,

« progress reports on the Linbrook Services
integration plars,

» Groupwestnent perfarmance brietngs

« proposals for potenual diversification
options within the built environment and

« business coses for qll projects over £25m,
includmg nisk profile

BOARD DIVERSITY

the Group 1s an equal opportunities
employer and promotes an envirenmani
free from discrimination The Group’s policy
on dwerstication extends to the Boeid ond
appointments are objeckive, free from bios
and based solely upon relevant experence
knowledge ond individual merit

COMMITTEES AND THEIR ACTMITIES
DURING THE YEAR

The Board delegates certain governance
responsibilities to Board Comrmittees and
these are detalled below

Business and Finanaial Qverview
Chawrman and Chiel Executive s Review
Case studies
Buslness and Finanool Review
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee constantly monitors,
mnterrogates and challenges management on
its aisk miigation hngnoiod performance and
the etlectiveness of its intarngt controls

The Committee looks to the internal and
external auditors to ensuie that their
actvities remain focused in the right areas
whtch enabies the Committee to aciin
accordance with its terms of reference, and
that management respond to the auditors
key finctings 1N @ imely monner

The Audit Committee compnses three
nan-executwe directars.and 1s chawed by
Graeme McFoull, a chartered management
accountant The Boaed ss soushed thot the
recent and relcvant hnoncigl oxpenence

of the Audit Commttee Chawrnan andits
members enables the Committee to fully
discharge its duties in accordance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code Membership
of the Committee during the year compnsad
Groeme McFaull as Charrman Tim Wates

and Frit2 Ternofsky, who succeeded Nick
MacAndrew in April 2012 when he retired from
the Board.

The Committee met four times 1 2012

and the Committee Chairman reported ts
conclusions to the Board ofter every meeting
The PricewaterhouseCocpers external

oudit portner attended oll four meetings
durmg the yeqr, as did the Charman and
Chief Executive the Chief Financiol Officer
the Head of Internal Audit and the Group
Commeraial Director ¢l ot the invitation

of the Committee s Chairman At egch
meeting, the Committee ¢considered whether
the withdrowal of management from the
meeting was required (n order that 1t might
freely discuss any items yath the internal and
the external guditors without the executive
management s presence Twice o year the
external auditor withdrows from the meeting
n arder thet the Committee may freely
discuss its performance with management
Minutes of the Audit Committee are
crrcutated to all members of the Commuttee
and Boord
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The Commuttee has clearly defined terms
of reference, which are reviewed annually
The terms of reference outhne the
Committee s obiectives ond responsibihities
reloting to fingnciol reporting internal
contrals, risk management and the
application of appropriate occounting
standards und procedures Speciic
responsibiliiies include reviewing and
recommending for gpprovat the ennual
fnoncial slolements reviemng the
Group’s accounting policies revievang the
effectiveness of niernot contiols miernot
audit ond r1sk manogement processes
and reviewing the scope and results of tha
external gudit

The Committee assessed the effectiveness
of the external auditor fallowing completion
of the 2011 audit plan The evaluation taok
the form of a questionnare to a cross
sechon of Wotes stoffinvolved i the

audii process including members of the
finonciol commercial, IT and internal gudht
functions and members of the executive
committee The cahbre of the external
audltor ther governance independence and
professionalism receved good feadback
Areqs of weakness that were addressed
during the 2012 audit inciuded improved
commumcation around the coliotion of
information and cocumentaton

The Commirtee afso has the responsibility

for overseeing the Internal Audit function,
ncludirg approval of the annual nsk-

bosed audit plan and mamtoring the wark
recommendntions and effectiveness of

the function The Head of Internal Audit
meeits with the Chowmaon of the Audit
Commuttee twice 0 year without the executive
manoagement s presence

The Committee momtors the independence
and objectivity of the external cuditor, by
agreeing the level of thew remuneration and
the extent of thewr non-audit services

Apart tfromiits usual dutres descnbed above
during 2012 the Commuttee

+ trocked manogement s response (o
key hndings in the external auditor s
management letter

discussed the effect of the economc
downturn on the Group and the major nisks
ansing, Including counterparty risk

considered the output from the Group-
wide process used to idennfy, evoluate ond
mitigate risks, wcluding review of specific
Business Unit Risk Regusters,

recewved g progress report on
mpraverments w aperational processes

reviewed priority areas where improvements
to contrals and ther operation could lead
to an improved internal audit opinion

recewed guartedty repors on controc
roviews and inancigd movements in the
penod

revicwed the Group s Bribery Act training
and development programme

reviewed the Graup s whistieblowing policy
and recetved reports an activity and
actions ansing and

reviewed matenal changes to the Group s
delegoted outhonty listings, ncluding
increases in guthonty levels commensurate
with contract nisks

-

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee s primary
objective 1s to set remuneration packcges
at alevet that will enhance the Group s
resources by attracting retaining and
motivating quolity semor management who
can deliver the Group s strolegic ombitions
The Committee hrmly believes that the
best people on the nght remunerction

with an emphass on performance related
0qQy encbles the Group to faca the chollenges
of economic and market uncertainty and
1o deliver [ong term sustainable value tor
all stakeholders

The Remuneration Committee compiises
four non-executive directors and 1S charred
by Fritz Ternofsky Members include James
Wates ond Graeme McFaull who succeeded
Nick MacAndrew when he retired from the

Board in Apnil 2012 David Barclay joined

the Commuttee in November 2012 The
Commuttee met four times in 2012 end the
Charmon and Chief Executive and the Human
Rescurces Director attendad the meetings at
the invitation of the Chairman

The Lommittee hus defined terms of

referance which are reviewed onnually '
The Commuttee is responsible far making

recornmendations to the Board concerning

the remunerstion strategy recruitment

fromework and long 1ermincentive plans for

senior executives In doing so, the Committee

takes the advice of ndependent external

consultonts New Bridge Street

Minutes of the Remuneration Committee
are circulated to all Committee and Board
members but may be subject to redaction,
with the agreement of the Commuttee where
thss considored necessory {o eaclude
matters refoting to specific directors

Dunng 2012 the Committee

- reviewed ond recommended chitena for
bonus and LTIP payments,

« approved employee parlicspouon of the
LTIP plan including transition and retention
1ssues

« undertook analysis 6f earnings prOGression
n the Business and ndustry

« considered market trends and
benchmarking dato for purposes of salary
recommendations

« reviewed guidelnes on executive
remuneration and the Group s response

« considered the efiectiveness ond
ndependance ofits advisors

« reviewed and recammended changes to
emplayee henehts

+ reviewed its own efiectiveness ond

« snushed itseli that the Groups

remuneration policy did not create ony
undug pressuras or rsks
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Jomes Wates chairs the Nominations
Committee comprising the independent
non-executive direCtors Petar Johnson

ond Graeme McFaull The Committee s tale
15 {0 consider the future composition and
structure of the Board and when necessary
to1dentify and evaluate candidates for
future appgintments In dong so the
Committee takes the advice of Independent
externgl recruitment consultants

The Commiitee s objecive 1s 10 ensure thot
Lhe Booerd remains balanced ond clieclve
that succession plans are in place and that
Its structure compasition and skill set reman
aligned 10 the Group s strategtc objectives

The Committes meets at least twice a yegr
and as required

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee chaired by the
Chiet Executive consists of individuals
responsible for the strategic Business Units
and key functions It meets formally twmice o
month and facuses on safety, performance,
people and strategy Responsibility and
guthoniy are set by the Board and delegated
by the Crief Executive to indmdual members
of the Executive Commuttee They inturn are
accountable to him for the perfarmance of
therr Business Units and submit medium to
long term strategic plans annuo! budgets
and quarterly forecosts for approvol

Details of the achievements of the Executive
Committee in 2012 are highlighted n the
Charman and Chiet Executive s Review ond
Business Review at the front of this report

Wates Developments and Needspace?

are Business Units within the Group that
have different reporuing ond governonce
requirements Developments reports to the
Board under the chairmonship of Tim Wates,
while Needspace? reports directly to the
execulive committee

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group operates a Risk Committee to
ensure that nharent or emerging risks in the
Busingss ore umely 1dentified ond monoged
at an appropricte level The Committee
reviews the organisation s response o
specihic areas of nsk and approves stondards
and processes where control weaknesses are
considered to exist

[he Risk Commuttee 15 chaired by the Chief
Executive and comprises members of the
Exeeutive Commiitee together with semor
Business Unit ang Function leaders The Boord
are satished *hat the composition of the
Commuttee and its terms of reference which
are reviewed annually strengthens the Group's
approach to rsk monagement and mitigation

Tne Committee meets four imes a year, the
timings of which are set to report nto the
Executive Commttee and Board Minutes of the
meetmg are crculated to all members of the
Committee, Executive Committee and Board

During 2012 the Risk Committee

= reviewed the Group ond Business Umit
Risk Registers and interrogated the risks
identrhed

satisfted wself that mintgating actions
were i place for specific nsks within each
register

reviewed the Group Commercial Report ot
every meeting and focused on nsks specihc
toindviduc| projects,

constdered the Group s eppetite for nsk ond
the protection of its reputahion,

requlorly reviewed counterparty nisk ond
associoted risks

tracked monagement s response G key
findings in Lhe qudiior s management letter
ond contral weoknesses identified by the
internol ossurance certihcation

reviewed the Group s Bribery Act fraining
and development programime

considerad the Group s resthence to

froud ond satished itself that appropnote
prevention and detection methods were in
ploce and eliective,

updated the Graups process tor colloting
existing and potential conflicts of interests

Business and Finanoa Overview
Chairman and Chief Executive s Review
Case stuthes
Business and Fmanaial Review
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+ upproved rnatertol changes to the Group s
delegated authority istings inciuding
Increases in authonty levels commensurate
wtth contract nsks

« ensured that adequate nsuronce policies
were In place to protect the Group's long
term qims

« evaluated the Group s whistieblowng
arrangements and

+ reviewed the Commuttee s composition
and governance

2013 ACTION PLAN

Focus of the Group Risk Comnmuttee s future
action plon will include nsks associared wth

= counterparty failure

= fallure of a major contractor;

s fespurce capohihty

= cosh monogement

« project sefection and delvery,

« contract terms and conditions and

« inhibitors tnat prevent eorly Identhcation
and tntervention gf 1ssues

The Group's operational nsks and their
mitigaion are outlined on pages 44 and 45

COMMUNICATE WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Wates Group s 100% owned by

the Wates family 4th generatton family
members are actively involved in the
business The Board continues to engage
and interact with the Famitly Enterpnse
Strategy, seeking to align the Group s
strutegic objectves with the fomiy s tong
term aspirations for sustainability and growth
and to explore diversification optigns and
glternative INvestment opporiunites in the
burlt envirgnment.

The Board confm thot the 2012 Annual
Report and Accounts taken as a whale

are fair balanced and understandable

and provide the information necessary

for sharehofdess to assess the company s
performance, business model and strategy

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

A statement of the responsibilities of
the directors in refation to the financial
statements follows this report

The Group’s business actmities together
with the factors likely to aftectits future
development, performance and position,
are set out in the Business Review on
pages 2& 1o 41 The financ:al position of
the Group, including its cosh flow liquidity
position and the manggement of pnncipal
nisks and uncertainties are descnbed on
pages 42 to 45

The Group has constderable hnancial
resources together with a strong forward
order hook, with a number of customers and
suppliers across different geographc oreas
and maiket sectors As a consequence the
directors believe that the Group is well placed
to manoge 11s business risks successfully
despite the contimued uncertainty of the
economic outlook

After making enquiries the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company
und the Group have adequate resources

to continue N operational exstence for

the foreseeable future Accordingly they
continue to adopt the gomng concern basis in
prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board takes ulimate responsibility for
the Group s systems of nsk manogement
and internal controt and for reviewing their
effechivenass The Groups principal risks and
uncertainties and how they are mitigated are
summansed onpages 44 and 45

The Board assessed the effectiveness of
the risk manogement process and internal
controlsdunng 2012 and to the date of
this report Such assessment was bosed on
reports made to the Boord Audit and Risk
Committees ncluding

« 0 Broup-wde certiftconon through a
letter of assurance procass that effective
iniernal controls had been maintained,
or where any significont non-complionce
or pregkdown had occuired, the statys of
carrective action,

= the results of internul cudit s reviews and
annugi internal audit opmnion,

= quarterly reporting of Key Control Monitors
by each Busmaess Unit,

* 0 poper prepored by monagement on its
anolysis of its intenal control systerms and

+ reports from the external quditors on
wnternal control 1ssues ansing during the
course of the audit

The Group s systems and controls are
designed to manage rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve bustness
objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not gbsolute gssurance ggainst matenal
misstatement or loss

The key teatures of the Group s system of
internal controls are

» on estabhshed manngement structure
operaung throughout the Group with
clearly defined levels of respanstbrity and
delegation of authonties

« apergting guidelines with authansation
hnits set ot appropriote fevels n both
Business Units and Group functions

= o comprehensive budgeting ond
forecasting system, which is regulorly
reviewed and updated,

« o formal quorterty review of cach Business
unit’s year-end forecast business
performance nsk and internal control
matters as carned out by the directors of
each Business Unit with the Chief Executive
and Chief Financigl Officer i ottendance,

« monthly management reporling inciuding
regular comparison of actual resuits
against lotest forecosts

« estahlisied standards governing
the Group s client and contract
selection processes tendenng and
settlement processes and contract nsk
management process,

= estobirshoed stundords governing the
Group s investment in land property
and other sigmificant nssets including '
acquisitrons and disposals These '
include detarled oppraisals appropriate
authonsetion levels and Board
approval depending on value or
perceived exposures,
= gppraval of investment decisions,

= regular monitgnng, review and reporting
of health, safety and environmental
matters, and

» Intarnal Audit function reviews of nisks
and controls

The Boord receved requlas reports from all
operating untts to monitor ther performance
and the Audit Commuttee receved regular
reports from the Internat Audit function

Al directors are property bneted onissues
ansing at Board meetings
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

POLICY
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The objective of the remuneration policy 15 to provide remuneration pockages which allow the business to attroct retam and motvate the
quality of semor management needed to deliver the Group s strategic gsprations and create sustainoble shareholder vatue The Remunargtion
Committee bekeves that shaieholders interests ore best served by remuneration packages having a large emphosis on performance-reloted
pay Itis therafore the aim of the Remuneration Commuttee 10 encouage and reward supenor performance by exacutives

The Commuttee’s pohcy 15 to set the main elements of the remunération package at the followtng quartiles in comparnson to the Group's

Comparator Group

Base Solary Annual bonus potential @ torget Pension Benefts in kind Long termincenlives
Median Medion Median Market practice Upper quartite
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ELEMENTS OF DIRECTORS’ The scheme applies to a senar manogement
The membership and responsibility of the REMUNERATION group of 37 participants

Commttee ore outhned in the Corporate

Governance Report BASE SALARY Performance torgets are set annually for

Committee members hove no personal
hnonaalinterest other thon os shareholders,
in matters to be decided, no potential
conflicts of interest ansing from cross
directorships and no day-to-day invalverment
in runmng the business

Formal wistten terms of reference gre in
place, a copy of which s gvailable from the
Company Secretary

BENCHMARKING

The Rerynerquan Committee tave
independent odvice on executive
compensatton and assocoted scheme
design The Groups remuneration is anpnually
benchmarked against campanies of a similar
size and comp'exity and other componies in
the same industry The Commitiee s current
adwisors New Brndge Street were appointed
i July 2008 ong the Commuttee are satished
that their advice remeins objective ond
independent

In determirung executive directers’ and senior
executives remunerction for the year the
Commttee consulted with the Chairman and
Chief Executive Paul Brechsler and Group
Human Resources Director, Julia Tyson
although no executive piayed any part i
ciscussions gbhout their own remunargtion

Salarses for Executive Committee members
take account of external market doto the
ndiduols’ responsibiiies expenence ond
personal periormance Solaries are reviewed
annually 1n ine with the stoted policy of
achieving median posiioning with the stated
Comparotor group Bose sclanes exclude
annuol bonus

ANNUAL BONUS

Abonus 15 poid to al! Executive Commuittee
directors ot a percentage of annualised
base salary A maxmum bonus of 150%

of the on torget bonus level can be achieved
if the Group s pre-tax profit attams pre-set
targets each year These targets are

agreed by the Committee The ennual bonus
15 not pensionchle

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

The Group s 7P 15 poyable n cosh ofter
u specihe petlormonce peniod generolly
3vyears and IS dependent on the
uchievernent of performance condittons
over that penod wiieh ore set ot the
beginming of each three year term

Poyment s made with reference to on
ndwvidual s salary gnd onnual bonus
percentoge which generates differential
levels of payment for different indwaducls
based on their contnibution to the business
and comparatwe markat postaning

each three year plon agoinst o baseline proht
hgure at thiee different performance levels,
threshold, target and stretch and by taking
sector outlook inta consideraticn

There ore further Chairmon specihc

LTIP schemes in respect of performance
reloting to the pravision of services to
the shareholders in terms of farmly
strategy generational transiben and
mdividual development

BENEFITS IN KIND

In kne with market practice the Group s policy
15 tu provide the stondord benefits in kind
approprigte for executive directors such as
prvate health Insurance and life assurance

PENSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Group operates both a Defined
Benefi scheme, which has been closed

to new members since 2000 end a
Defined Contribut'on pension plon
Executve directors erther participate in
the Wates Pension Fund, or they receve
acontributton of up to 25% of basic salary
towards o money purchase scheme or,

by taking the cash olternative an
arrangement of their own choosing

Wates Annudl Repart and Accounts 2012
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SERVICE CONTRACTS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has service agreements with its executive directors which have a notrce penod of one year The Group s policy on termination is
that the Group does not make payments beyond its contractual obhgations and executive diractors are expected to ringate therr loss

Executive Directer Company Notice Period _ Contract Date Unexpired term of contract  Potential termination payment
Pau! Drechsler 12 months 6 September 2004 raling contract 12 manths salary

David Huw Davies 12 months 1 February 2005 rolling controct 12 months salary

David Smith 12 months i July 2001 rolling contract 12 manths salary

EXTERNAL DIRECTDRSHIPS

With the approval of the Board and shareholders m the cose of the Charman executive diractors are permitted to hold external appointments
During the year Poul Drechsler was a non-executive director of Filtrona plc end Huw Davies wos a non-executive director of WSP plc
Dave Smith holds no extemal appo:ntments

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the independent non-executive directors s determined by the Board ond reflects the anticipated time commitment to
llfi thewr duties and i bosed an annaal salary dota of non-executive directors faes

Independent non-executive directars do not have semvace contracts as thew terms of engagement areregulated by letter of appointment
They are uppointed for an iretial fixed term of three years anc are oble to resubmit themselves for re-election after each three year peniod
They gre required to retire at age 65 The dates of re-election where apphcable of independent non-executive directors are

Non-executive director Contract date Re-election date
Dawvid Barclay 10ctober 2012 1 October 2015
Peter Johnson™ 4 May 201 4 May 2014
Graeme McFaull 1 September 2009 | September 2015
Friedrich Ternofsky* FJune 2006 1 june 2015

* Shoieholders have approved the re-election of Peter Johnson and Fritz Ternoisky beyond age 65
** Peter Johnson had a break in senace between 25 Aprid 2006 and 4 May 2011
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preponng the Annuad Report and the fingncial stotements
1N accordance with applicable law and regulotions

Compaony law requires the directors to prepare fnancial statemeants for each financial

year Under that low the directors have prepared the Group and parent company iinanciol
statements in accordonce with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and apphicable 1ow) Under company law the
duectors must not opprove the iincnoial statements unless they ore satshed that they give
o true and fair view of the state of afferrs of the Group ond the Company and of the profit or
lass ot the Group for that penod tn preparnng these financiai statements, the directors

ore required to

= select suitable accountng pohcies and then apply them consistenthy;
= maoke judgements ond accounting tsbimotes thot ore 1eusongbie ond prugent

» stute whether apphcable UK Accounung S andurds have been followed subject to ony
malongl departures disclased ond explained in the hnonciol stalements

o prepure the hingpodl stutements on tre going concern basis unless it 1Isinaparopngie to
presurme that the company will continue in business

The direclors are responsible for keeping odeguole accounting records 1hot are sufficient to
show and explain the Company s transactions and disclose with reasenoble accuracy at eny
ume the financeal positon of the Company and the Group and enable them 1o ensure that
the hinanciol stoiements comply with the Compomies Act 2006 They are also respons:ble
for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable
steps far the prevention and detection of froud and other regulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Company s website
Legislovon n the United Kingdom governing the preporction and dissesmnouion of ingnoiol
statements may differ from legistation in okher junsdictions

wates Annual Report ond ACcounts 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’” REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS QF WATES GROUP LIMITED
Company number 01824828

We hove audited the Group and parent company hinanciof statements (the ' finoncial statements ) of Wotes Group Lirmted tor the year ended
31 December 2012 which compnise the Consohidated Prahit and Lass Account the Consolidoted Balonce Sheet the Consohidated Statement
of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Reconciliation of Movements in Group Shareholders Funds the Compony Balance Sheet, the
Consohdaoted Cash Flow Stotement and the rofoted notes The finonow! reporting ramework 1ot has been npphed in thes preporouon 1s
applicable fow and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibiities of directors and auditors

As explmined more fully in the Statemeat of Directors’ Responsihliies set qut on page 59 the directars are responsible for the preparation of
the bnoncisl statements and tor being sotished thet they give ¢ true und foir view Our responsibility 1s to oudit and express an opimon on the
financial skotements in accordonce wilth applicable low ond International Slandords on Audiling (UK ond Irelund) Those standards reguire us 1o
comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Stondards for Auditors.

This report including the opinions has been prepared for and onty for the Company s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or 1o
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it moy come sove where expressly agreed by our prior cansent in writing

Scope of the audit of the fingnciol statements

An audit invalves obtmmng evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financeal statements sufficient to give reasonable gssurance
that the hnanool stutements are free from matenol misstotement whether coused by troud or error This inCludes on gssessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate 1o the Group 5 and parent company s circumstances and have bean consistently applied and
adequately disclosed the reasonnbleness of significant accounting eshimates made by the directors and the averall presentation of the
financial statements In addition we read all the finoncial and non-financiol information in the annual report to identify motenal inconsistencies
with the oudited (iInunowl stoternents 1§ we become aware of any epporent matertol misstaternan®s orincansistenceas we consider the
imphcations for our report

Opimon on inoncial siotements

In our opimon the finoncial statements

= give 0 true and fair view of the state of the Group s and the porent compony’s offarrs as ot 31 December 2012 and of the Groups proft and
cash flows for the year then ended

» have heen praperty prepared n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accented Awcgunting Prgcuce and

= have been prepored in occordanee with the requiremerts of the Camponies Act 2006

Cpimton an ather matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our optnion the information given in the Dhrectors Report for the finanaol year for which the finonciat statements are prepared 15 consistent
wath the Aingnaigl stotements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have rnothing to reportin respect of the following motters where the Companies Act 2006 sequires us to report to you it 1n our opimon

+ adequate cccounting rerords have not heen kegt by the purent : ompony or returns adequate for aur oudit have nat been recewved from
branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company Arancial statements are nat in ggreement with the azcounung recards and retums or

= coriain disclosures of directars remuncration specthed by low are not made or

« we have not recewed all the infarmation and explanaglions we reguire for aur audit

RN

lonathan Hook (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on hehalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutary Auditars
London

12 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
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202 20n

Notes £000s £000s
Turnover
Group and share of joint ventures and gssociate 11931568 1117 041
Less share of turnover of joint ventures and associate (86,577) {83112}
Group turnover continuing operations 2 1,096 991 1033929
Cost of sales {1,001,922) {924 662}
Gross profit 95,069 109,267
Administrative expenses (including restructuning casts) (78,241) (80300)
Group operating profit
Continuing operations 3 16,828 28,967
Uperating profit from nterests in joint ventures ond associole 1 9,046 36998
Total operating profit = Group and shore of joint ventures ond associate
Before restructuning costs 30,778 32.666
Restructuring costs (4 804) -
Tota! operating profit — Group and shore of joint ventures and associate 25.874 32 666
Profit on sole ol invesiments b 1,302 7,69
Dehcit on revoluation of invesirent properlies (220) (40)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and toxation 26,956 39,795
Net interest recewvable 7 2,672 3532
Net interest payable - joint ventures (1,763) (1580)
Net other iinance chiarges 7 (2,130) (1603)
Profit on ordinary octnaties before taxation
8efore restructunng costs ond profit on sole of investments 29,337 32,975
Restructuning costs {(4.904) -
Prafit an sate atinvestments 1,302 7169
Profit on ordwnary activities before taxation 2 25,735 40144
Taxation 8 {7.024) {9794)
Proht for the hnancial year 19 18.711 30 350
The obove resuits have been denved from continuing operations
There 1s no materncl diference between the reported results and the results calculoted on an unmodihed histarical cost bosis.
A statement of movements in reservesis setout innote 19
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 201
Notes £000s £000s
Fixed assets
intangible ossets
Goodwll 9 26,232 27.842
Tangible fixed ossets 10 19,260 19705
Investments in ot ventures
Share In gross assets 1 79,930 84,293
Share in gross habilities 1 {Nn,272) (79845)
Loans provided to Joint ventures n 37.920 46773
Total investments in joint ventures n 46,578 51221
Other mvestments 1l 2,679 2631
94,749 101 399
Current assets
Stacks 12 9,726 15035
Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year 13 182,965 167,197
Amounts falling due aiter more than one year 13 15,174 1010
198,139 178,207
Cash at bonk and in hand 121,254 132 095
329.119 325337
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 14 (301,482) (32,734)
Net current assets 27,637 12 603
Total assets less current kabilitres 122 386 114 002
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one yeor 15 {13,497 (14 241)
Provisions for liabilities 16 {5.470} (4 648)
Net assets excluding pension hability 103,419 9s 113
Net pensicn liability 24 {33,198) (30.815)
Net assets including pension iabiiity 2 70.221 b4 298
Capmtal and reserves
Colled up share capital 18 14,777 8777
Share premmum account 19 956 956
Capital redemption reserve 19 17,447 11,447
Revaluation reserve 19 1,770 1220
Profit and lnss account 19 352N 34 898
Shareholders’ funds 70.221 64,298

The notes on pages 66 to 86 torm part of these accounts

Approved by the Boorad of Directors on 12 March 2013 and signed on ts behalf by

()‘3 \BNLS\KI

P. ). Drechsler D H. Davies
Charmen ang Cmef Executive Chief finoncial Othcer

]

62 Above all it s about people




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL
RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Business and Financial Dverview

Charrman and Cheet Executive s Review

Case studies

Business and Financial Review

Governance

[D ] Accounts
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2012 20n
Noies £000s EC00s
Proht/(loss) Tor the dnancial yecr
Group 12.677 28910
joint ventures 6,068 1439
Associate (34) -
1B 30350
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of nvestment propertes 19 550 476
Currency translotion difterence on foreign currency net investment 19 255 {88)
Actuarnal loss recognised in the pension scheme 19 (5.073) (8 834)
Deferred taxation credit attnbutable to actucnial loss 19 345 1571
Total recognmsed gains and losses relating to the year 14,788 23475
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS
IN GROUP SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
2012 200
Notes £000s £Q00s
Proht for the financial year 18,M 30,350
Divadends pond (13,865} (19913
Gther recogrused gains and losses relating to the year (net) 19 {3,923) (6,875)
New preference shares 1ssued 18 5.000 -
Net increase in shareholders’ funds 5.923 3562
Opening shareholders funds 64,298 60,736
Closing shareholders’ funds 70,221 64,298

Wates Annual Report and Accounts 2012

63



| Accounts ]

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 201
Notes £000s E£000s
Fixed assets
Investments 11 58 412 5807/
Current gssets
Debtors 13 24,567 20208
Cash at hank and in hand 121 314
25.288 20522
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 14 (32,742) {41138)
Net current habilities (7.454) (20,616)
Net assets 50,858 37 461
Copital and reserves
Colted up share capital 18 147717 9,777
Shore premium account 19 956 956
Copital redemption reserve 19 17,447 17 447
Proht and loss nccount 19 17,778 9.28]
Shareholders’ funds 50,958 37 46]

The nates on pages 66 to 86 form port of these accounts

Approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

(4 Pyve ctor o

P ) Drechsler
Chairman gnd Chief Executive

Chuef Finoncal Officer
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
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j D | Accounts
Qther information

2012 200

Notes £000s £000s
Cash (outflow)/inflow from Group operating actmvties 20 (1.769) 37,137
Dividends recerved trom joint ventures 1815 608
Returns on investments ond servicing of inance
Interest receved 2,632 2919
Interest poud (10) {2 543)
Net cash inflow from returns oninvestments and servicing of inance 2.622 376
Toxation
Coiporation tox paid {6.235) (9 881)
Camtod expenditure and finonciol investment
Purchase of tangible fixed ossets (1,217) {2,994}
Purchase of investments (109) (2216}
Disposal of tangihle fixed assets 15 63
Disposal of investments 1333 1746
Net foans repad by/(to) jont ventures 7.669 {11 970)
Net cosh inflow/(gutilow) from capital expenditure and fingnceal investment 7.591 {15371)
Acquisiton and disposal
Purchase of subsidiery undertaking - (40 804)
Cash acquired with subsidicry undertaking - 9118
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - 5580
Cash disposed of with substdiary undertaking - (2 986)
Net cash outflow from acguisition and disposol - {29 092)
Equity dividends paid {13,865} (19 913)
Net cash outflow before inancing (15,841} (36136)
Management of iquid resources
Cash withdrawn from short-term deposit 11,080 95 745
Net cash nflow from management of iguid resources 11 080 95 745
Financing
Issue of preference share capiicl 5.000 -
Repayment of barrowings - {982)
Nef cash inflow/{outflow) from financing 5.000 (982}
Increase in cash 21 239 58627
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Accounts

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
31 DECEMBER 2012

1 Accounting policies

1) Bosis of accounting
These accounts have been prepared on the gong concern bosis, under the istoncal cost convention s modihieg by the revaluotion
of investment properties, and in gccordance with the Cormpamies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standords in the Urited Kingdom
The principal accounting pelicies which have been applied consistently throughout the year are set out below

i) Basis of consohdation

The consalidated accounts include the accounts of Wotes Group Limited and its substdiory undertckings made up to 3! December 2012
The acquisition methed of accounting has been adopted Under this method where subsigianes ore acqurred or sold during the year,

or where joint arrangements are entered nto or terminated during the year the consolidated accounts include the results for the part of
the year far which they were subsidianies or joint arrangements

Anassociate 1s an undertaking 1in which the Group has along term interest usually from 20 per cent to 50 per cent of the equity voting
nghts ond over which it exercises significant isilyence A joint venture is an undertaking in which the Group hos a long term nterest and
over which it exercises joint control Associotes ond [omnt ventures are accounted for using the equity besis in the consohdated proft

ond loss gecount us the Group s shiure of prafits less losses and 10 the consoliduted balonce sheet at cost, Including advunces, plus

Lhe approprigle share of post acguisition retoined profits and reserves Where the Lroup trades with a joint venture the proportion of
wrnover and proht in respert of the proporion of e jont venture owned by the Group s ehminnied on consokdonon Such probts inken
when the assets purchased by the joint venture ore sold by it

Where a Group company 15 party (© 4 Joint arrangement that s not an entity that company accounts directly for its share of the income
and expenditure, assets hatlives ond cosh flows Such arrongements are reported in the cansohdated occounts on the same hasis

Where the accounting pohcies of associates and Joint ventures do not conform to the Group s accounting pohcies, adjustments are made
on consohdation in order to present the Group occounts on g umform bosis

In accordance wih Section 408 of the Companes Act 2006 no separate prohit and loss account hos been presented tor the Company
however the profit for the yeor hos been disciosed nnote i

w}  Turnover
Turnover represents the value of work dane an contracting actvties sales of residential praperties and development progerties that are
legally completed within the year sates of land onwhich unconditional exchange of contracts has taken place by the yeor end and other
fees receivable

Turnover excludes the value of intra-group transactions and Vaiue Added Tox and includes the Group s share of turnover of joint ventures
and gssociates

w} Pre-contract costs

Privete Finance iniiative (PFI) bud costs are chargad to the profit and loss account until such time as the Group 1s wirtuolly Certain

that it will enter into contracts for the relevant PRl project Virtual certainty 1s generally achieved at the time the Group 15 selected s
preferred bidder From the point of virtual certanty bid costs are capitahised and held in the Group balance sheet gs a debtor prior to
arhisving financial close On inancial close oi PRI project ond financing agreements the Grorip recovers capitalsed bid casts from the
relevont project compony If the recovery of tid costs exceeds the omount camitalised by the Group to inoncial close the over-recovery
1s credived to the balaonce sheet os deferred income Delerred income 1s relegsed to the profit and loss account over the penod of
construction

Tender costs on construction controcts are wntten off to the profit and loss account up untd the pomnt it & wirtually certan that the Group
will be owarded the contract

v) Research and development
Research and development costs are wntten off as incurred
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CONTINUED
1. Accounting policies contioued
vt}  Intangible assets — goodwill — and negative goodwill
Goodwilt arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, representing any excess of the faw value of the consideration given over the
faw value o1 the identihable assets end hobibities acquired 1s copitalised and waitten off on a straight ine basis over its uselul economic lile
Provision1s made for ony impowment There 15 no negative goodwill ansing on or after 1 Januory 1998
Purchased goodwill (both positive end negative) ansng on consolidation in respect of acquisitions before |anuary 1998, when FRS 10
Goodwill ond intangible assets wos acopted wos written off to reserves in the year of ccquisiion When a subsequent disposul occurs,
any gooawill previcusty written off 10 reserves is wntten back through the prohs and loss account as part of the grofit o kss on disposal
vii} Tangible fixed assets ond depreciation
Investment properties ore revaiued annually ot their open morket value Net surpluses on veluations of indmdual Investment propesties
are credited to revatuahion reserve Anyimparment in value of indwidual nvestment properties below Losl or the reversat of such a defioit
1s charged {or credited) ta profit and toss occount Depreciotion 1s ngt provided in respect of freehold investment properties The directars
consider that this accounting policy which represents a departure from the statutory accounting rules 1s necessary 1o provide o true
ond foir view as required under SSAP 1S Accounting Sor snvestment preperties’ The hinoncial effect of the depariure from the statutory
accounting rules is not matenal
Tangible hixed assets are :nitially recorded at cost Subseguent expendriure on tongible fixed assets is copitohsed o the extent that
1t provides an enhancement to the economic benefits of the usset ahove tts previously ussessed stundord of performonce Allother
subsequent expenditure 1s chorged to the proht and loss ccgount as incurred
Deareciatton 1s provided in equat onnualinstalments over the estimated useful ives of assets s0 0s (o wite oif the cost less the estumated
residuat volues over the iollowing penods
Leasehold land and buldings penod of lease
Plant and machinery 3to 10 years
Fixtures, ittings, tools ond equipment 2to 10 years
vill) Investments
In the Company s occounts, mvestments in subsidiary undertakings asscciates and jont ventures are stated ot cost kess ony provision
far mparrment Equity lcans and unquoted investments are stated at cost less any provisian for impairment Income from vestments is
ncluded in the Group profit and loss accoumt as approved
x} Stocks and work In progress
Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost including attnbutable overheods and interest and net realisable value
x) Long term contracts

The principol estimelion techmque used by the Group in atnbuting prohit on contracts 1O o porticulor accounting period 1s the preparation
uf forecosts on u controct-by-coneract bosis These focus on costs to cemplenon und enable un gssessment to be mode of the hnal
outturn on each controct Consistent contract review pracedures are in place in respect of contract forecasting

Profts onlong term contracts are calcutaied in accardance with SSAP 9 Stocks ond long term contracts  For our Construction segment
profits do notrelote direc ty ta turnover Profit o contracts $ only tuken ot 9 stage neur enough to tompletion for thot profit to be
regsonably certan Pravisign is made for oll losses incurred tg the accounting date togather wath any further losses that are foreseenin
bringing contracts to completion

As certain agreements can run over ¢ considerable number of years and cover a number of indvidual separable construction projects,
the apphcation of a percenlage complote prafil taking rule 1s nol deemed appropiale Praflis therelore taken on these agreements
where the final accounts have been ngreed with the chiens i, the year
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NOTES TO THE ACCQUNTS
CONTINUED

1. Accountung policies continued

x)  Long term contricts continued

Amounts recoverable on controcts which ore included in debtors are stated at cost, plus ottrbuioole profit to the extent that thisis
reasonably certan after making provision for contingencies less any lasses incurred or foreseen n bringing contracts to completion
and less amounts recenved as progress payments Costs for this purpose mclude vatuation of all work done by subcontractors whether
certified or not, ond all overheads other than those relating to the general adminustration of the relevent companies For ony contracts
where receipts exceed the book value of work done, the excess s included in creditors as payments on gccount

x1}) Finance debtors

The Group has adopted the provisions of FRS 5 Reparting the substance of tronsactions (Applicotion Note F) in determining the
appropnate treatment of the principal assets of ond Income streams from PFl controcts Where it has been demonstrated that the
balonce of risks and rewards derived from the underfying asset are not borne by the Group the asset created ond/or provided under the
contract ss occounted for as a inonce deblor under FRS 5

Dunng the construction phase of PFl projects, all attnbutable expenditure and interest is included in amounts recoverable on contracts
and turnover

Upon becoming operationol the total costs of the PFI project ore transterred to the inance debtor and income deqved from the PFI
controct 15 allocoted between the provision of the asset and the provision of subsequent services Upon ucceptance of the constructed
osset, the tinunce debtor 1s amortiseq over the Iife of the contract aganst the relevunt porton of the contruclintome

xu} Residentlol developments

For our Residentiol Development segment profits are on the posis of octual property soles to dote compared ta forecast hnol seles ang
costs for each development site

xiii} Taxation

The charge for taxation 1S based on the result tor the yeor ond 1okes into account raxguon deferred becouse of nming differences between
the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes Deferred taxation 1s provided fully and on a non-discounted basis at
the overage corporaucn tax rates expected to apply in Lhe periods in which the tming differences are expecled toroverse based on lax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantwely enacted by the balance sheet date

Xiv) Leases
Operoting lease rentols are chiarged to the profit anc loss account on a stroight ine basis over the pertod of the lease

xv) Cosh and hqued resources

For the purpose af the cash flow statement cash compnses cash in hand and deposits repaydble in not more than one working day less
qverdrafts poyable on demend

Liquid resources are current asset nvestments which are disposable without curtailing or disrupting the business ond are either reqdily
convertible nto known gmounts of cash at or close to their carrying values or traded in on octive market Liquid resources comprise term
deposits of less than or equal to one year ather than cesh and investments in money market managed funds

—

xv1) Pension costs and post retirement benehts

The Group operaies a defined benefit senston scheme prowiding benefits bosed on penstonable pay which s now closed to new entranis
The gssets of the scheme are held sepasatety from those of the Group

Pension scheme assets are megsured using market values For quoted securities the current bid pnice 1s taken as market value Pension
scheme lobiliies are measured using a projected unit method and discounted ot the current rate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivafent term and currency to the hability
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CONTINUED

1. Accounting pohicies continued

xv1) Pension costs and post retirement benefits continued

The pension scheme surpius (10 the extent thot it 1s recoverable) or deficit 1s recogmsed in full The movement n the scheme surplus/
dehcit shown in the pront ond loss acccunt 15 sphit between operating charges and finance items Actuorial gains and losses are shown in
the consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses.

The Group also operates dehnad contributton schemes The amount charged to the proft and loss account represents the contetbutions
payable to the schemes i respect of the accounting period

xvii) Preference share capital |
|

Preference share copitol s clossified os equity If It is non-redeemable ond cny dimdends are discretionary, or 1s redeemabie bt only ol the
Companys option Dividends on preference share capital classified as equity are recagnised as an appropriation of prohts

Preierence shore capitalis clossified as o irability 1115 redeemable on a specific date ar at the option of the shareholders or 1f dnadend
payments are not discretionary Dividends thercon ore recognised in the prafit and loss account os interest expense

aviti} Foreign currency

Transoctions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction Monetary assets and liebilities
denomunated o forewgn currencies ot the dote of the bolance sheet ore reported ot the rates of exchonge prevadhng ot that dote

The results of overseos companies are translated at the average rates of exchange during the penod and their balance sheets at the rates
ruling at the balance sheei date Exchange differences onsing on the translation of opening net ossets and results of overseas companies
are reported in the consolidoted statement of total recognised gmins and losses All ather exchange ditfererces are included in the proht
and loss account
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

2 Segmental information 202 2011
2m2 201 Proft Proft
Tumover Turnover batore tox before wox
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Construction
Belore restructuning costs and profit on sale of investments 23406 31,075
Restructuring costs {4,900) -
Prafit on sale of wvestments 1,302 7,169
Construction 1,0M,129 1029524 19,804 38 244
Residential development 24,009 2,649 9165 3613
Other activities 1.853 1756 {3,234} {1,713)
Group total
Before resirucluring costs and proht on sale of investments 29337 32975
Restructuning costs (4,904) -
Profit an sale of nvestments 1,302 7169
Group total 1,096,991 1033,929 25735 40144
2012 20N
Met ossets Net assets
£2040s £000s
Canstrucuon (103,944) (1 0s3)
Residential development 61,244 58632
Other actmities {8,333) (15376)
Cash and net debt 121,254 132,095
70,223 654,298
The Construction segment s Wates Construction s construction activity for Construction, Living Spoce and Intenars and Retan customers
Other actmities include the Group s provision of workplace ond support services activity and the net pension habiity (note 24)
3 Group operating profit
2012 2011
E0GOs £000s
Thus 1s stated after charging
Auditors' remunerction®
- audit of these aeccounts 21 4
- oucht of subsidanes occounts 79 202
- taxation complionce services 26 17
- non-gudit services 10 6
Amortisation of goodwill 1610 1045
Depreciation of tongible fixed asseis
{(including loss on disposal £13 000 201 £8 000) 2.077 1931
Hire of plant and machinery 5,074 65060
Operating lease payments
- land and bulldings 2,757 2738
- plant and machinery 704 556
Research and development 3.64% 4534

* Excludes fee payrnents made through joint ventures
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS Other mfommation

CONTINUED

4  5taff numbers and costs

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including drrectors) during the year analysed by categary was as follows

2z 20m
Number Number
Operations 1.660 1909
Administration 707 741
2,367 2650

The agaregate payroll costs for the Group were a5 follows
202 201
£000s EQO0s
Waoges and salaries 117,964 126 522
Socml security cosls 13,272 14,004
Other pension costs 8.710 9075
139,946 149 601

The pension nperating cast for the year under FRSI7 was £3 295 000 (2011 £3 236 000) n respect of defined benefit anangements pnd
£5 415000 (2011 £5 833 000) in respect of defined contribution arrongements

5 Remuneration of directors

2012 201

£000s £000s

Directors emoiuments  — executive and farmly directors 2,067 1992
~ mdependent non-executive directars 185 174

Arnounts receivoble undei fong term incenive scheme - 3232
Contributions to mongy purchase pension scheme 100 87
2,352 5485

Five {2011 five) directors hgve retirement benefits occrunag under the Group s defined benefits pension scheme and three (2011 three) directors
have benefits arcrung under o money purchase pension scheme

2012 2011

£0005 £000s

Highest poid director - emoluments 722 606
- gmounts recevable under long termuncentive scheme - 1755

6. Profit on sale of investments

The profil on sole ol investiments includes the sale of the Group s investment in 72% of QED Luton (Challncy) Holdings Limned in 2012, ond
i (ED (Slough) Heldings lurited Educanan Suppaort (Enheld 2) Holdings { mited Education Support (Newham) Holdimgs | imited and GED
{Clacton) Holdings Limited m 2011 and s included within the Construction segment
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

7. HNetunterest recewable and ather finance charges

2012 200

EQOOs £000s
Imerest recevable
Bank 540 968
Other 2,142 4,892
interest recevable 2,682 5860
Interast payable
Bank - (2,325)
Qther (o (3
Interest payable and simifor charges {10} (2328)
Netinterest recevable 2,672 3532
Other finance (chargesl/income
Expected return on pension plan assets 6,714 1678
Interest on pension plan habilities (8,844} {9.281)
Net auher finunce charges (2.130) {1 603)
B Taxation on proht on ordinary activities
a} Analysis of the charge in the year

2012 200

E0DDs {0005
Current tax
UK corporation tax on the profit tor the year at 24 5% (2010 26 5%) 3528 8,142
Adpstments in respect of pnor years 33 (29}
Total current tax {note 8h) 3,581 8713
Deferred tax
Deferred tax moverrttent on pension cehon 701 (on
Onginatign and reversol of timing differences 1389 238
Decreasen tax rate 310 325
Adjustments in respect of prior years (186) (61
Total deferred tax 2.214 401
lot venture tax (note 11} 1249 680
Assgciate tox (note 11) - -
{otal tax on proht an ordingry activities 7,024 9794
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8 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities continved

b) Foctors offecting the current tax charge for the year

The current tax charge for the yeor is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 $%) The differences are

explained below

2012 20m
£000s £000s
Prafit on ordinary actvities betore taxation 25,135 40 144
Less share of praht nelare tax of joint venures ond gssociate toxed 05 seporate enlilies {4759} (1.323)
Group grofit on ordingry cctiviuies before tox 20,976 3882
Group prafit on ordinary activities multipked by the standard rate of corporation toxin the UK of 24 5% (201l 20 5%) 5.139 10288
Effects of
Permanent disallowable costs 1275 854
Utiiscuon of tox iosses (134) (55)
Additionaol deduction for research and development {268) {360}
Cepreciation in excess of capital allowances 92 22
Franked investment incame (12) {14)
Untaxed capital gams 319) (1500}
Short-term urmng differences and other provisicns {1,499) (200}
Tax uming diference in relotion Lo penston hability (746) 107
Adjustments in respect of prior years 33 (29)
Current tax charge for the yeor 3.561 8713

¢} Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Groupis not aware of any significant tactor that may aftect future lox chorges other than the reductiuns in the moin rote of corparoton 1Qx
glready reduced from 24% ta 23% from 1 Aprl 2013 with o proposed further reductton to 2i% from 1 April 2014 which s expected 1o be enacted

n 2013

It the delerred 1gx assets of the Group werc all to reverse after 2014 the effect of the proposed change from 23% to 21% would he to reduce the
defarred tax assets by £1.368 000 To the extent that the deferred tox reverses more quickly than this the impact on the deferred tax assets will

be reduced
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

9 Intangible assets — goodwill

Group £000s
Cost

At Jonuary 2002 and 31 Becember 2012 29 652
Amornsation

At 1 January 2012 1810
Prowided during the yeor 1,610
At 31 Becember 2012 3420

Net boak amounts
At 31 December 2012 26,232
At 31 December 201 27842

Goodwill 15 being amorused over ten years and twenty years which 15 respectively, its estimated useful economic life

10. Fangible fixed nssets

Land and buildings

Investment Fetures Assetsin
properties — Shan Plent ond httings tools the course ol
freehold leasehold mochnery and equipment consiruction Group total

Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Valuotion or cost
At1)anuary 2012 14320 4,603 633 13218 481 33255
Additigns - 9 67 669 572 1,317
Revaluations 330 - - - - 330
Transfers - - - 95% {959} -
Disposals - - (56) (27) - (83)
At 31 December 2012 14 650 4,612 b44 14 819 94 34819
Deprecigticn
At1lanuary 2012 - 2575 399 10,576 - 13550
Provided during the year - 530 96 1438 - 2064
Dispasals - - (34) (21} - (55)
At 3t December 2012 - 3105 461 11,993 - 15559
Net boeok amounts
At 31 December 2012 14 650 1,507 183 2,826 94 19,260
At 31 Gecember 2011 14320 2,028 234 2,642 481 19705

The investment proper tes of the Group were valued os at 31 December 2012 by Richord M Tnmnung BSc FRICS a dwector of a subsidiary of the
Group onanopen market value basis at £14 650 000 The cost of investment properties at 31 December 2012 was £13 189 000 Other tangible
fixed 0sscls are stared ot cost less depreciabion
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Dther information

interests
in Nt Interest in Unguoted Total other
vonures assoaate nvestments Equity toans nvestments
Group £060s £000s £000s £000s £DDDs
At January 2012 51221 - 1874 757 2 631
Additicns 1501 a8 - - 98
Repayments {24 538) - (22} {22)
Prowision released - - 6 6
Transferred to debtors falling due within one year {1184) - - -
Shure of profit/(loss) 6.068 - - (34)
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2012 46,578 1,874 741 2,673
Principal joint ventures
The Group holds the following interests m the ordinary share copital of the foliowing companies
Interest Actmty
Luton Learming and Community Partnership Ltmited 80 0% PFI
Regenter Excellent Homes for Life Holding Company Limited 20 0% PR
Annington Wates (Cove) Limited 50 0% Residentiol development
Barratt Wates {East Grinstead) Limited S00% Residential development
Barroit Waotes {Horley) Limited 215% Residentg development
Barratt Wates (Worthing) Limited 500% Residential development
DWH/Wates (Thome) Limited S0 0% Residential development
Linden Wates {Cranleigh} bmited SG0% Residentig! development
Linden Wates Devejopments (Chichester) Limited 500% Residential development
Linden Wates Developments {Folders Meadow) Limited 5G0% Residential development
Linden Wates {Oorking) Limited S0 0% Residential development
Linden Wates (Fulham} Limited 500% Reswdentiol development
Linden Wates (Ridgewood) Lrrmted 50 0% Residential development
Linden Wates (West Hampstead) Limited 50 0% Reswtential development
The Group holds the following interests i unincorporated joint ventures
Interest Actty
Al Ain Schoaols Joint Venture 24 5% Construction
Al Bateen Secondary School Jomnt Venture 245% Construction
Bniish Schoei Joint Venture 24 5% Construction
Address of the above three joint ventures
Suite 702, 7th Floor Al Fara o Corparcte Head Office Behind Municipality Court
Oif Delma Street Defence Areq, Abu Dhate United Arob Emirgtes
Linden Wates St Albans foint Venture 500% Residential development

Address Linden House Linden Square Harefield Middlesex 133 6TQ
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

11. Joint ventures and other investments continued

The Group s joint venture mierests ore onalysed segmentally s foliows

Residential Residential
Construction development Total Construction dewelopment Totd
2012 202 2012 200 201 200
Group £000s £000s E000s £00Ds £0D0s £000s
Turngver 46,493 49,069 95,562 61120 21992 83112
Operoting proat/ (loss) 132 8,948 9,080 £393) 4092 3699
Prohi/tloss} beiore Laxauon 33 7.284 7.317 (480) 2599 2119
Taxation (7 {1.242) (1,249) {16) (664) (680)
Proht/(loss) ofter 1oxaticn 26 65,042 6.068 {496) 1935 1,439
Share of gross nssets
Fixed assets - - - 7 - 7
Current assets 21,569 58 38 79 930 31,309 52977 84 286
Share of gross assets 21,569 58,361 79.930 31,316 52977 84293
Share of gross labities
Ligbilities due within one year N.475) (as7nn (21,192) (6,057) {7 885) {13.942)
Liobiimes due ofter one year (10,086) (33,994) (44,080) (25 241 {40,662) (65903}
Share of gross labitres (21.561) (49,711} (7.272) (31298) {48 547) (79 845)
Loans provided to joint ventures 1622 36.298 37,920 3886 42 887 46773
Total investmentn jont ventures 1,630 44,948 46.578 3904 47317 51221
Turnover from Group trading with joint ventures, which 1s disclosed in note 27, ncludes £34 807,000 (2011 £38,324 000} which was eliminated
an consobdation being the proportion of turnover relating to the proportion of those (oint ventures owned by the Group
Associote
The Group holds o 49% interest in the ordinary share capito! of Countrywise Repairs Limited, whichis included within the Construction segment
The Group’s share of the turnover and loss of the asscoiate company 1s as follows
201 )
Group coa0s £o00s
Tumover 1.015 -
Operaung loss (34) -
Loss before taxation (34) -
Taxation - -
Loss ofter taxation (34) -
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11. Joint ventures agnd other investments continued
Unquoted investments
These prncipally comprise the Group s interest in the fallowing company
tnterest Actmty

Gambado Limited 100% non-voting Preference shares and 1 4% Qrdinary shares Children s entertainment centras

The cost of shares In unquoted mvestments Is £1,874 000 (201 £1 874 000)

Equity loans

These compnse amounts advonced to homebuyers to assist in ther purchase of the Group s residential properties under equity share schemes
The loans, with a cost of £1137 000 {2011 £1158,000) are repayable when the underlying property is sold together with a share in the capital
appreciatron included in this total are loans with acost of £199 000 (2011 £199 000) which are repayoble i the properties are not soid by
2021 The loans are mainly secured by a charge over the property Loans with a cost of £391 000 (20N £391 000) are interest free and loans
with a cost of £745000¢2011 £767,000) are interest free untf 2016 when q fee of 1 75 percent is recevable nsing annually by the Retail Price
index plus one percent

Sharestn
Group Unguoted
undertokings nvestments Totdl
Compuny £000s £000s £000s
ALl January 2012 56,203 1874 58,017
Reductions (1,900) - {1200}
Provisions released 2235 - 2,235
At 31 December 2012 56,538 1,874 58.412

The cost of shares in Group undertakingsis £75 262 000 (2011 £77,162 000)
The cost of shares inunquoted investments 1s £1 874 000 (2011 £1,874 000)

For the yeor ending 21 December 2012 the following subsidiary companies were entitied 1o exempiion from oudit of individual compaony
gccounts under Secton 479A of the Companies Act 2006

Wates Limited (company number 03599183}

Wates Group Services Lirmited {(company aumber 0340931)

Watas Lancewood Estates Lunted (company number 0965116)
QED Educetion Environments Limited (company number 0629832)

The Group s principal substdiory undertakings are set out on poge 86
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED
12, Stocks
2012 It
Group £000s EDE{JODS
Row matenals and consumables 283 152
Residential land and work 1n progress under development 9,443 14 883
9,726 15,035
13 Debtors
Group Company
2012 201 2012 200
£000s £000s £000s EOODs
Amounts follimg due within one year
Trade debtors 79,193 6106l 41 17
Amounts recoverable an contracts 96,360 96,553 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertokings - - 23.248 188394
Amounts owed by joint ventures 1,323 1214 - -
Deferred toxation {note 17) 1,845 2,436 - -
Other debiors 1.308 2923 33 1017
Prepayments ond accrued income 2936 3010 a5 180
182,965 167,197 23,417 20168
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts recoverable on contracts 13,362 9325 - -
Deferrad taxation (note 1/} 521 1,443 - -
Other debtors 1,291 242 1,150 100
15174 nolg 1150 100
198,139 178,207 24,567 20208
14 Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2012 200 2012 20m1
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Advance peyments on account of controcts 56,013 74988 - -
Trode creditors 55,062 52934 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiory undertakings - - 32742 41138
Amounts owed to jJoint ventures 1.998 - - -
Corporation tax payable 1,926 4601 - -
Other taxes and sociol security 15,203 14453 - -
Other crediiors 4,005 4207 - -
Accruals and deferred income 167,275 161,551 - -
303482 312734 32.742 41138
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Dther Information

Group Compery

202 200 2002 201

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Accruals ond deferred income 13,497 14 241 - -
16 Prowisions for liabilittes

202

Group £000s

At January 4,648

Utiised during the year (539)

Profit ond loss occount — charged during the year 1361

At 31 December 5,470

All provisons gre construction ieloted ond ore e group’s esumaotes of the amounts which ore expected 1o be pod when finglised generolly

after one year after the balunce sheet dote

17. Deferred taxation

2012

Group £00Ds

At 1 Januaory 3879

Charged to proft and lass account {1513)

At 31 December 2,366
Deferred taxation 15 provided as follows

2m2 200

£000s £000s

Accumuloted depreciotion in excess of capital allowonces 459 47

Short-term timing differences 1.842 3337

Tax losses available 65 7

2.366 3,879

2012 201

£000s Loo0s

Deferred toxation asset under one year 1845 2436

Deferred taxation asset over one year 521 1443

2,366 3879
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
CONTINUED

18 Called up share copital

2012 201
Number £000s Number £000s
Issued and fulty pad
A ardinary shares of £1 each 323,854 324 3231854 324
B ordinary shares of £] egch 323,854 324 323854 324
C ardinary shores of El each 323,854 24 323,854 324
A second crdinary shares of £0 0277 each 60 - 60 -
8 second ardnary shares of 00277 each 60 - a0 -
C second ardinary shares of £002/7 each 80 - 60 -
Non-vating second preference shares of L1 each 5,000,000 5000 - -
Non-voting A preference shares of £1 each 2.914,677 2914 2.914,677 2914
Non-voting B preference shares of €1 each 2914677 2,914 2314677 2.914
Non-voting C preference shares of £1each 2,914,677 2912 2914677 2914
Index hnked non-votng A shares of £1 each 20,750 21 20,750 21
index kinked non-voting B shores of £1 each 20,750 21 20750 21
Index knked non-voung C shaies of £1 each 20,750 2} 20758 21
14,778,023 14,777 9778023 9777
The second preferance shares noted above were allotied by the Company during the year for £3,000,000 in cash
19. Share premium account and reserves
Share Copital Proft ong
premum regemption Revauation loss
account reserve feserve accaunt
Group £000s E000s LO00s £000s
At 1January 2012 956 17447 1220 34898
Revaluation surplus - - 550 -
Currency translatien difference on fareign currency nel investment - - - 255
Praht for the hnanciol year - - - 1871
Dwidends paid - - - {13,865)
Actuanal loss recognised in the pension scheme - - - (5.073)
Dederred tax credit arsing on loss in the penston scheme - - - 345
At 31 December 2012 956 17,447 1,770 35,27
Share Copital Piofit and
prermum redemption loss
account reserve account
Company F000s £000s £000s
At January 2012 956 17,447 9281
Profit for the hnuncol yeor - - 22362
Owadends pad - - {13 865)
At 31 December 2032 956 17,447 17,778
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Business and Finanook Overview

Chowrman and Chiet Executive s Review

Case studies

Business and Finanao! Rewew

Governance
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QOther information

2012 20n

£000s £000s

Group operating profit including joint ventures and associate 25,874 32,666

Oepreciation and amortisation 3687 2976

Prowisions movement 816 (680)

joint ventures gnd gssociate (9.046} (3,699)

Dacrease in stocks 5309 2715

(Increase)/decrease n debtors {20.21} 5653

Decrease in creduars {14,198 {2 494}

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities {7,769} 37137

21 Analysis of changes in net funds

At At

1 lanuory Cosh December

2012 flow 2012

£000s £000s £000s

Cash at bank and in hand 132 095 (10 841) 121,254

Less deposits due after ane day {18.094) 11,080 (8.014)

239

Liquid resources depostts due after one doy 19094 (1 080) 8,014

Net funds 132,095 (10 841 121,254
22 Reconcilintion of net cosh flow to movement in net funds

z012 201

£000s £GO0s

Increase m cashin the year 239 58627

Cash inflow from decrease n liguid resources (11,080) (95 745)

Cash outflow from decrease in bank loans - 282

Change i net funds resulting from cash ftows (10 841 (36136)

Bank loans disposed of with substdiary - 42 559

Amorbisaion of 155ue cosis of debt - 22

Movement in net funds i yeor (10 841) 6401

Net funds at | Jenuary 132,095 125 694

Net funds at 31 December 121,254 132095
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

CONTINUED

23 Dperating lease commitments

Lagnd ond Lond and
buidings Other Buildings Other
2012 202 201 2an
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Annual Group commitments to operating lease
payments within one year in respect of leases expiring
Within one yeqr 233 197 14 125
Batwean two and five yaars 20485 a1 2 266 33
After five years 10 - 144 -
2,338 608 2424 438

24. Pension schemes

The Group operates o funded defined benehl pensipn scheme the Wates Pension Fund ( the Scheme®), for all gualifying employees werking in
the UK and persongl pension schemes providing benehts on o deined contrbution basis The lunds of the Scheme are odministered by trustees
and are separate from the funds of the Group The Scheme s closed to new entrants

The latest full octuanal vuluotion of the Scheme was carned out at |lenuory 2011 and was updated to 31 Becember 20i2 by a gualified

independent actuary

The current prociice of ncreasing pensions m ine with inflotron is included in the measurement of the defined benefi obligotion The pension
cost charged to the profit and tnss accaunt makes no aliowance far actuanal gams angd losses dunng the vear Actuenal goms and lasses are
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Loesses in the year they occur

2012 2011
£000s £000s
Chorgos i prosent volue of the defined benebt obligation
Dehned henelit obligation ot i Jontary 190,069 169 886
Current service cost 3,295 3236
Interest cost 8,844 928l
Scheme porticipants cantrbutions 56 58
Actuanal lesses 10,959 13941
Benehts paid (7,144) (6333
Expenses pod (840) -
Taxes powd {nz) -
Defined benefit obhigotion gt 31 December 205127 190,069
Changes in far value of Scheme gssets
Farr value of Scheme assets at 1 January 148,982 138,035
Expected return on Scheme ossets 6.714 7678
Actuarigl goins 5.886 5107
Employer contributton 8.47 4437
Scheme partcipants’ contributions 56 58
Beaefits poid (7.144) (6333)
Fxpenses paid (840) -
Taxes paid ma2j -
Farr value of Scheme assets at 31 December 162,013 148,982
Funded stotus (43.14) (41087)
Related deferred tax asset 9,916 10272
Net pension lability in balance sheet (33.198} (30 815)
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Other information

Components of pension cost Eggéi 5020002

Recogmised w1 the prodt and 10ss account

Cuirent service cost 3,295 3236

Interest cost 8,844 9,281

Expected return on Scheme gssets {6,714) (7,.678)

Total 5.425 4839

Recogmsed in the statement o1 1otol recognised

goins and losses

Actuanollosses immediately recagnised 5,073 8834

Cumutative amount of octuanal losses

immediately recognised 53,204 48131

Scheme assels zm: 20};,

Maojor categones of Scheme ossets as o percentoge

of total Scheme assets.

Equity secunties 26 2% 139%

Debt secunties 65 5% 107%

Property 34% 70%

Other 49% 8 4%
100 0% 100 0%

To develop the expected long term rate of return on assets assumpuon, the Group considers the cuirent level of expected returns on risk-free
investments {pnmanly government bonds) the tistorical level of the nisk premium ussociated with the otker asset classes in which the portfolio
ts invested and the expectations for the future returns of each asset class The expected return for each osset class 1s then weighted based on
the target asset allocation to develop the expected long term rate of return on gssets assumption for the portfolio This results in the selection

of the 4 S per cent assumption shown below (year ended 31 December 2012)
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24 Pension schemes continued

202 201
£000s £000s
Actual return on Scheme assets 12,600 12,785
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balonce sheet dote
{expressed as werghted averages) 2012 201
Discouni rate 4 A5% 470%
Rate of compensation increqse 395% 410%
Rate of price inflation 295% 310%
Rate of pension increase (2 5% imited price indexotion) 2 50% 250%
Expecied long term return on Scheme assets 4 50% 560%
Weighted average life expectancy for mortabty tables used 2012 201
1o determming haneht abhgobons at year end E000s £000s
Male member age 55 {current bife expectancy) 23.2 227
Female member age 65 (current hife expectancy) 248 241
Male member oge 45 {life expectancy at age B5) 250 241
Female member age 45 {(Iife expectancy at age 65) 268 256
Five year histary cgg(‘li EO%%; Eggéos {%%%gs [f)?)?)i
Dehned beneft olthigation 205,127 190069 169,886 147,641 133289
Scheme gssets 162,013 148 982 138 035 126,698 118,513
Dehait {43114} (4ra8n (31851 (20943) (14,776)
Expenience gains and (losses) on Scheme habilities - (9 465) - - (7382)
Difference between expected and octual return on 5.886 S 107 5839 3097 (17.582)

Scheme gssets

Contrihutions

The Group expects 10 contribuie approximately £6 721 00D including expenses 1o the Scheme in 2013

Creditors at 31 December 2012 include End (201 £432 GOO) of pension contnbutions payable sn respect of defined contnbution schemes

25 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2012 the Group had no contracted coprtal expenditure (2011 Erl)
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26 Contingencies

There are cloims gasing 1n the normal course of treding which are in the pracess of negotiotion and which in some coses are Yikely to be
protracted over several years Prowision has been made for all amounts which the directors consider will become poyoble on account of cloms
There are cantingent habibties in respect of guorantees under buildings and ather agreements entered into in the normal course of business

The Company has guaranteed the overdrefts of subsidiory undertakings

27 Related parties

Turnaover n respect of the value of contracting work done for and lund sold to joint ventures in the yeer ended 31 December 2012 was
£65037000 (2011 £54 801 000)

Amounts were due to the Group from jaint ventures at 31 December 2012 of £39,243 000 (2011 £47 987 G00) Additionally at 31 December
2012 the Group owed jont ventures £1 998,000 (2011 Enil)

At 3t December 2012, £1 000,000 {2011 £900,000) was due from Mynad CEG Group Limited (Mynad) and 15 included n other debtors of the
Company and the Group Myniad 15 related to the Company and the Group through common cantrol Mynod Group undertook contract work for
the Group for £701,000 (281 £1 482 000) dunng the yeor
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

All principal subsidiary undertakings are incorporated n England and Wales except where otherwise stated

The Wates Group Limited interest 1s 100% (except where otherwise stated) n the issued shate capitol
of these undertokings included i the consolidated accounts

Construction companies

Wates Construction Limited®

wates Construction International LLC (incorporated in Abu Dhabi ownership interest 49%)
Wwates Interiors Limited

wates Mantenance Services Limited

Wates Regeneratton {Coventry) Limited

Linbrock Services Limited

QED Education Environments Limized*

Residentiol development companies

Wates Developments Limited*

Wwotes Group Properties Limited

Provision of workplace and support services company
Needspace? Limited*

Group services company

Wates Group Services Limited*

*Owned directly by Wates Group Limited

Subsidiary undertakings not noted chove wilt be included in ahst hlted at Lomponies House with the unnual retuin
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2008 2009 2010 201 2012
£m £m £m Em £m
Profit and loss account
Group turnover (plus share of joint ventures
and ozsocmtes iﬁrnovef) : 1419 945 985 1 1194
Group tumover 1,008 904 895 1034 1.097
Operaung pront 37 380 411 327 259
Prafit on ardinary actannies before taxation 471 389 435 401 257
Bolance sheet
Net ossets 62i 595 607 643 T02
ADVISORS
Auditors Registered Office and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Bustness Head Office
Chartered Accountants and Wates House
Stotutory Auditors Station Approach
One Embankment Place Leatherhead
London WC2ZN 6RH Surrey
Bankers KT22 7SW
HSBC Bank plc T 01372861000
B3 Queen Victona Street W wwwwates couk
London
EC4AN 4TR
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ADDRESSES

Registered Office and
Business Head Office
Wates House

Station Approach
Legtherhead

Surrey

KT22 75W

T 01372861000
W wwwwaies co uk

Principal Offices

4th Floor
Network House
Basing View
Basingstoke
Hampshne

RG21 4HG

T 01256 301750

Wates House

11 Ridgeway

Quinton Business Park
Quinten

Birrrngham

B32 1AF

T Q214232323

Ground Floor
South Wing
Equinox Norgh
Great Park Road
Almondsbury
Bnstol

BS32 4QL

T 01454 615561

Suite 7225 Building 7200
Cambridge Research Park
Beach Drive

Waterbeach

Cambndge

CB25 9TL

T 01223 8i5666

Paviion 5
Garden Court
Lockington Hall
Derby

DE74 ZRH

T 01509 678935

Linbrook Services 1 td
Frankhin House
Crown Road

Enfeld

ENI LFE

T 0208804 7777

Westcourt
Geiderd Road
Wortley

Leeds

LS12 6DB

T 0N3 2311880

The Peck

2nd tioor

5 Wilton Road
London
SWIV1AN

T 0207630 4410

Mulberry House
Pordand Square
750 Capobility Green
Luton

Lui3LY

T 01582 400171

The Royals

4th Floor Qffices

353 Altrmcham Road
Sharston
Manchester

Mz22 4B}

T 0161946 BBOO

I Clearwater

Lingley Mere Business Park
Lingley Green Avenue

Great Sankey
Warrington

WAS 3UZ

T 01925791100

3 Seqward Place

Centurion Businass Pork

Glasgow
G4l IHH
T 0141429 9440

26 Crewe Road Gardens
Edinburgh

EH3 2NN

T 0131515014

Lianmaoes
Michagiston Road
St Fagans

Cardif

CFS6DU

T 02920675200

Wates Construction
Internatignal LLC

P0 Box 3486

20th Floor

tHH Skh Sultan Bin Homdan
Al Nahyan Building
Corniche Road

Abu Dhoby

United Arab Emirates

T +97126431882
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